
A high performance analog leader

Intersil Corporation
2003 Annual Report

growthopportunities



ABOUT INTERSIL

Intersil Corporation (NASDAQ: ISIL) is a global technology leader

specializing in the design and manufacture of high performance

analog semiconductors. Intersil products address three of the

industry’s fastest growing markets—flat panel displays, optical

storage (for CD and DVD recordable products) and power

management. The company uses its analog expertise to power

over half of the world’s desktop PCs, enable high-speed recording

onto DVDs and CDs and deliver vivid images to flat panel

monitors and LCD TVs.
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INTERSIL’S MISSION

To become one of the top-tier

high performance analog companies

in the world. With many years of

analog experience, Intersil is built

on a solid foundation. The continued

focus on leading in attractive 

high performance analog markets—

while increasing profitability and

cash flow—will provide Intersil

a sustainable long-term model

for success.
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2003 Revenue Growth

Analog Market

12%

Intersil

18%

Revenue
(in millions)

2002

$428

2003

$508

Gross Margin

57%

New Product Releases

158

55%

312

2003 Revenue by End Market

16% High-End Consumer

32%

28%

24%

Computing

Communications

Industrial

financial highlights

valueIntersil is a company managed for 
long-term value creation, with a focus on

analog semiconductor growth markets and
emerging applications and technologies.

This combination will enable Intersil 
to continue to achieve significant 

growth in revenue and income.
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(dollars in millions) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2003

Revenue $115.6 $125.5 $130.5 $136.1 $507.7

Cash & Liquid Investments $633.1 $632.6 $916.9 $964.1 $964.1

New Product Releases 70 50 101 91 312



Intersil is strategically positioned to achieve:

• Revenue growth at or above the industry rate

• Earnings expansion—profit velocity—greater than revenue growth

• Significant cash generation

• Leadership positions in high growth markets and analog product segments

the
of Intersil

Strategic Intent

Customer focus and industry-leading solutions

growth
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Intersil is a semiconductor company with substantial

revenues, leading global customers, a strong

balance sheet and exciting growth potential in the

high performance analog arena. Intersil’s strong

business model, along with its leadership positions

in high growth markets, and valuable intellectual

property, will enable the company to continue to

achieve outstanding results.

With over 1,600 dedicated and experienced

employees worldwide, the company develops

innovative products for customers such as Dell, Intel,

Hitachi, Philips, and Sony, at design facilities located

in California, Florida, New Jersey, North Carolina,

Texas, Washington, and the United Kingdom.

Intersil is a well-recognized industry leader in its

chosen markets:

• #1 in laser diode drivers for Optical Storage

• #1 in switching regulators for Power

Management

• #1 in TFT buffers for Flat Panel Displays

• #1 in line drivers for the DSL central office

As we enter 2004, our product strategy focuses

on four end markets: high-end consumer, comput-

ing, communications and industrial. Intersil has

developed a significant number of innovative new

products aimed at these strategic markets. New

product introductions, together with continuing

demand for our existing portfolio of industry-leading

solutions, will drive growth into 2004 and beyond.

Our growth strategy, combined with attractive and

improving gross and operating margins, results in

a powerful, long-term business model that will

continue to increase our profitability and enhance

shareholder value.

A Premier High Performance Analog Company

three

competitive advantage

2006E

$35.4

1992

$8.7

1993

$10.7

1994

$13.6

1995

$16.6

2004E

$30.6

1996

$17.0

1997

$19.8

1998

$19.1

1999

$22.1

2000

$30.5

2001

$23.2

2002

$23.9

2003

 $26.3

2005E

$34.2

The Analog Market
(in billions)

World Semiconductor Trade Statistics, Nov 2003



A broad-based product portfolio targeting multiple fast-growing markets

diversity

With over 20 years of analog electronics experience,

a portfolio of more than 1,300 patents and a global

team dedicated to bringing its high performance analog

technology to new and emerging applications, Intersil is

well positioned to be a high performance analog leader.
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Intersil’s diverse product portfolio includes:

• Data Converters
• Interface Devices
• Laser Diode Drivers
• Line Drivers
• MOSFET Drivers

• Operational Amplifiers
• Power Controllers and Regulators
• Switches
• TFT Buffers
• Voltage Sequencers

Targeting multiple fast growing markets:

• Digital Cameras
• DSL Central Office
• DVD Recorders
• File Servers
• Flat Panel Displays
• Medical Imaging
• Military and Space

• Notebook and Desktop PCs
• PDAs
• Smart Phones
• Telecom Central Office
• Test and Instrumentation
• Voice Over Internet

the
of Intersil



the power behind intersil

diverseIntersil has a balanced position within four
end markets, and growth drivers in each of

these areas that address some of the fastest
growing segments of those markets.

f ive

■ Communications ■
Intersil has a portfolio of advanced,
high performance products that
address communications applica-
tions including digital subscriber
line (DSL) and cable modems,
home satellite set-up boxes, and
smart phones, along with a variety
of other portable communications
devices. We leverage power and
communications experience to
provide reliable and cost-effective
solutions.

Intersil is the number one supplier
of line drivers for the DSL central
office. The leading DSL companies
in the world use our line drivers in
central office applications to deliver
high bandwidth to homes at ever
increasing speeds. During 2003,
Intersil began shipping the world’s
only line drivers capable of 50
megabytes per second.

Additionally, our advanced power
management devices— including
battery charge and fuel gauge ICs—
help power the “always connected”
revolution in homes, offices and
public “hot spots.” These regulators
are being designed into next-
generation products and meet the
increasing demand for efficient,
intelligently-regulated power man-
agement that conserves power and
delivers longevity of operation.

Our newest family of products
addresses the rapidly expanding
smart-phone market. The increased
functionality of these devices
requires advanced power manage-
ment solutions, which closely aligns
with Intersil’s competencies.

■ High-End Consumer ■
The high-end consumer market is
a rapidly growing sub-segment of
the overall consumer products
market, which is comprised of
the newest, most technologically
advanced solutions available to
consumers. While this is Intersil’s
smallest end market today, it will
likely be the fastest growing area
of the company over the next
several years, due to Intersil’s
strong position in leading-edge
technology targeted to the high-
end consumer market.

The market for DVD recordable
(DVD-R) devices is growing at 
an explosive rate. Many personal
computers and stand-alone con-
sumer devices are now equipped
with DVD-R drives, which have the
ability to record video and audio
multimedia in larger quantities
than have ever been possible
before. Intersil is uniquely posi-
tioned to take advantage of this
market trend, as the leading
provider of laser diode drivers for
DVD-R devices.

Additionally, Intersil enables a
rapidly increasing number of
computers and televisions to be
equipped with LCD and plasma
flat panel displays through its port-
folio of leading-edge TFT buffers.
Intersil is the number one provider
of these solutions to high-end tele-
vision and computer manufacturers.

The increasing demand for porta-
bility and connectivity continues to
drive growth for handheld devices,
such as personal digital assistants
(PDAs), digital still cameras and
MP3 players. Intersil’s long history
as the leader in computing power
management positions us very well
to address this fast growing portion
of the high-end consumer market.
We provide leading-edge products
for managing core power in hand-
held devices, as well as advanced
solutions for battery management.

■ Computing ■
The ever-increasing microprocessor
speeds continue to drive growth
in the large market for personal
computers (PCs) and servers. Intersil
remains the leading innovator and
supplier of power management
solutions for desktop computers.
Our diversified portfolio of
advanced products continues 
to expand, and our integrated 
circuits manage core power in
approximately 50% of the world’s
desktop computers and servers.
We also supply power regulators
to other areas of the desktop 
market, including double data rate
memory, sleep state control devices
and graphics cards.

Intersil is leveraging its leadership
position in desktop PCs into the
rapidly growing notebook computer
market. During 2003, we gained
market share in notebook power
management and increased our
portfolio of products for notebook
applications. Intersil’s competitive
advantages in notebook computers
include significant switching 
regulator and power applications
expertise, strong relationships
with Intel and AMD, and the
trend in notebooks toward faster
microprocessor speeds.

Intersil’s history as a premier com-
puting power management leader
continues. Over the past five years,
Intersil has shipped more than
1.2 billion power management
integrated circuits and continues
to ship at a record rate. The
company’s extensive investment in
research and development will
position us well to address the
next-generation technologies.

■ Industrial ■
The large industrial market has
long been a focus area for many of
Intersil’s products and comprises
approximately 25% of the com-
pany’s revenue. Our broad product
portfolio— including converters,
switches and multiplexers, data
transceivers, operational amplifiers
and power ICs—serve a multitude
of industrial end applications.
Intersil is continually looking to
expand its portfolio, with recent
additions to the interface and
switch product families. These will
provide high data integrity and
low voltage solutions for a broad
range of industrial applications.

Intersil also has a strong core
competency in operational ampli-
fier design, obtained through 
its acquisition of Elantec in 2002.
During 2003, the company intro-
duced nearly 100 new products
targeting the high-speed opera-
tional amplifier market. Among
these are the world’s fastest
low-noise amplifier, and the new
differential amplifiers which drive
video and other analog signals.
Intersil’s products are designed for
high performance and low power
consumption, and are expected to
address a variety of imaging, video
and instrumentation applications
with these industry-leading solutions.



Dear Shareholders:

I’m pleased to report that 2003 was another year of strong financial performance and exciting

strategic change at Intersil. Revenue from our continuing businesses grew 18% in 2003, and our

earnings grew significantly faster than revenue. Intersil generated over $70 million in cash flow

from operations and exited the year with nearly a billion dollars in cash and liquid investments.

During 2003, we successfully completed our transition to a pure high performance analog company,

with the sale of the wireless local area networking business. In addition, we introduced over 300

new products—a record number for Intersil.

In December, Intersil was added to the NASDAQ-100 Index, which represents the 100 largest,

non-financial NASDAQ-listed companies. This should bring added awareness of Intersil’s 

outstanding performance, and greater exposure to a broader base of potential shareholders.

STRONG GROWTH AND CONTINUED OPERATING LEVERAGE

For the third consecutive year, Intersil grew revenue faster than the overall analog market. Our

leading-edge product portfolio enabled us to achieve 18% revenue growth from our continuing

businesses in 2003, compared to an analog peer group that grew 12%. Even more impressively, we

increased our gross margins to over 56% and significantly improved our operating margin, exiting

the year at 24% of sales.

Our strong growth in income enabled Intersil to generate over $70 million in cash flow from

operations and we exited the year debt free, with over $960 million in cash and liquid investments.

Due to our strong financial position, in September, our Board of Directors declared the company’s

first dividend and approved a $100 million stock repurchase program. We remain committed to

managing Intersil’s financial performance to maximize shareholder value.

letter to shareholders

A management team consistently improving results

integrity

six



growth

OUR STRATEGY

We enter each year with a goal of emerging stronger than 

we began. I believe that we accomplished this in 2003, and I am

optimistic we will do it again in 2004. Within the broad category

of analog, we focus on the very high performance segment, which

in 2003 represented about one-third of the $27 billion analog

market. It is becoming increasingly clear that analog truly powers

the digital revolution in virtually every market, and often helps

differentiate products in the fastest growing segments of the

consumer, communications, computing and industrial markets.

Intersil has a broad-based product portfolio targeting some of the

fastest growing markets, and we continue to expand this portfolio

at a record rate. During 2003, we saw significant growth from

our laser diode drivers for DVD recordable drives, our power

management solutions for notebook computers, and analog

drivers for the DSL market.

Product diversity is a big part of our strategy and success at

Intersil. No single product and no single customer accounts for

more than a few percent of our revenue. We are able to participate

in the growth of electronics across a broad set of industries. Our

sales to end markets remain very balanced with consumer,

computing, industrial and communications each currently repre-

senting between 20 and 30% our revenue.

Our results clearly indicate a successful business model; one that

is intensely focused on customers and one that is capable of

delivering advanced technology for rapidly emerging applications.

Through the ups and downs of the semiconductor industry, we

believe we are well positioned in the best segments with some of

the best products in the industry.

WELL POSITIONED FOR CONTINUED GROWTH

Our business is strengthening in all major product areas and

across all geographies as we enter 2004. We continue to invest in

research and development at record levels and intend to increase

the number of new product introductions again this year. With these

new leading-edge solutions aimed at strategic markets and the

continuing demand for our existing portfolio of industry-leading

products, we are confident we can continue to grow revenue and

earnings in 2004 and beyond.

In keeping with Intersil’s tradition of recognizing our top performers,

we recently announced the establishment of our Fellows Program.

This program is designed to further foster technical excellence

throughout the company by formally recognizing our leading

technical contributors as role models, mentors and leaders.

Congratulations to Sandy Fairgrieve, Barry Harvey, Jack Linn,

Joe Pierret, Larry Pearce, and Nick Van Vonno, Intersil’s Fellows

Program charter members.

Finally, I would like to express my sincere appreciation to all

Intersil employees for making 2003 a year of continued growth

and success. We realize that our ultimate results are based upon

the quality of our internal execution, and that our success is

tightly linked to that of our customers. Without the dedication

and commitment of everyone, this success would not have been

possible. We are also very grateful to our customers and investors

for their continued confidence and trust in us.

I look forward to a prosperous 2004.

Sincerely,

Rich Beyer

“Intersil introduced a record number 
of new products in 2003 and is 

well positioned for continued strong
revenue and earnings growth in 2004.”

Rich Beyer
Intersil President & CEO
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experienced

successThe semiconductor market is fast, exciting, 
and competitive—our success is based on 

a well trained, responsive, and customer-
oriented team. Intersil’s diverse workforce 

shares a “can do” attitude and is always 
poised to serve customers.

eight

2003 financial report

CONTENTS

Selected Financial Data 9

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 10

Market for Registrant‘s Common Equity 25

Consolidated Balance Sheets 26

Consolidated Statements of Operations 27

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) 28

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 29

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity 30

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 31

Independent Certified Public Accountants‘ Report 52

World-class talent in the semiconductor industry



The following table sets forth selected financial data for us and our predecessor operations, when we were part of Harris
Corporation (“Harris”). The historical financial data as of and for the fiscal year ended 1999 and for the six weeks ended August 13,
1999, are derived from our predecessor’s audited consolidated financial statements, which are not included elsewhere in this
report. The historical financial data as of and for the 46 weeks ended June 30, 2000, the 26 weeks ended December 29, 2000,
fiscal year ended 2001, fiscal year ended 2002 and fiscal year ended 2003, are derived from our audited consolidated financial. All
periods presented have been audited. This information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this report and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Successor Successor
Predecessor 46 Weeks 26 Weeks
Six Weeks Ended Ended Successor Successor Successor

Predecessor Ended June 30, December 29, Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Fiscal Year August 13, 2000 2000 2001 2002 2003

($ in millions, except per share amounts) 1999 1999 (a) (i) ( j) (f ) (i) (b) (e) (h) (i) (c) (e) (g) (h) (d) (e) (h)

Revenue $514.4 $ 54.3 $548.5 $ 338.4 $ 398.5 $ 419.6 $ 507.7
Income (loss) from continuing 

operations before cumulative 
effect of a change in 
accounting principle $ 45.6 $ (0.6) $ (28.5) $ 16.3 $ 96.0 $ (23.3) $ 58.5

Basic income (loss) per share from 
continuing operations before 
cumulative effect of a change 
in accounting principle $ (0.37) $ 0.16 $ 0.91 $ (0.19) $ 0.42

Diluted income (loss) per share 
from continuing operations
before cumulative effect of a 
change in accounting principle $ (0.37) $ 0.15 $ 0.88 $ (0.19) $ 0.41

Total assets $761.2 $736.1 $933.9 $1,229.8 $1,200.2 $2,369.5 $2,454.7
Long-term debt, including 

current portion $ 4.6 $ 4.5 $116.6 $ 65.5 — — —
Dividend per common share — — — — $ 0.03

The following transactions significantly affect the comparability of the results between the fiscal periods above:

a) We were formed on August 13, 1999, through a series of transactions, in which we and our wholly owned subsidiary, Intersil Communications, Inc.
(“Intersil Communications”), acquired the semiconductor business of Harris.

b) On March 16, 2001, we sold the assets of our Discrete Power product group to Fairchild Semiconductor. The results of operations of this
product group were excluded after the date of sale. Please refer to Note H within the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

c) On May 14, 2002, we merged with Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. (Elantec). Accordingly, Elantec’s results of operations since the merger date are
included within the results above. Please refer to Note I within the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

d) On August 28, 2003, we sold the assets of our Wireless Networking product group to GlobespanVirata, Inc. The results of operations of the
product were excluded after the date of sale. Please refer to Note S within the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

e) During fiscal year 2001, fiscal year 2002 and fiscal year 2003, we recorded various impairment charges. Please refer to Note L within the
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

f ) In 2000, we changed our year end to the closest Friday to December 31. Accordingly, we had a 26-week transition period ending
December 29, 2000.

g) Fiscal year 2002 contains 53 weeks. All other periods identified as “fiscal years” include 52 weeks.
h) During fiscal year 2001, fiscal year 2002 and fiscal year 2003, we recorded various restructuring charges. Please refer to Notes J and K within the

Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.
i) In the 46 weeks ended June 30, 2000, the 26 weeks ended December 29, 2000, and fiscal year 2001, we recorded losses related to the early

extinguishment of some of our debt holdings.
j) During the 46 weeks ended June 30, 2000, we sold our Malaysian fabrication facilities.
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The following discussion should be read in conjunction with,
and is qualified in its entirety by reference to our consolidated
financial statements, including the notes thereto. Except 
for historical information, the discussions in this section 
contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those
discussed below.

This Annual Report contains statements relating to
expected future results and business trends of the Company
that are based upon our current estimates, expectations, and
projections about our industry, and upon management’s
beliefs, and certain assumptions we have made, that are 
“forward-looking statements” as defined in the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Words such as
“anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,”
“seeks,” “estimates,” “may,” “will,” and variations of these
words or similar expressions are intended to identify “forward-
looking statements.” In addition, any statements that refer to
expectations, projections, or other characterizations of future
events or circumstances, including any underlying assump-
tions, are “forward-looking statements.” Such statements are
not guarantees of future performance and are subject to certain
risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult to 
predict. Therefore, our actual results may differ materially and
adversely from those expressed in any “forward-looking
statement” as a result of various factors. These factors
include, but are not limited to: global economic and market
conditions, including the cyclical nature of the semiconductor
industry and the markets addressed by our and our cus-
tomers’ products; demand for, and market acceptance of,
new and existing products; successful development of new
products; the timing of new product introductions; the suc-
cessful integration of acquisitions; the availability and extent
of utilization of manufacturing capacity and raw materials; the
need for additional capital; pricing pressures and other 
competitive factors; changes in product mix; fluctuations in
manufacturing yields; product obsolescence; the ability to
develop and implement new technologies and to obtain
protection of the related intellectual property. These “forward-
looking statements” are made only as of the date hereof, and
we undertake no obligation to update or revise the “forward-
looking statements,” whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise.

Overview

We are a global designer and manufacturer of high performance
analog integrated circuits. We believe our product portfolio

addresses some of the fastest growing applications within four
attractive end markets: high-end consumer, computing, com-
munications and industrial.

Basis of Presentation

On March 16, 2001, we sold the assets of our Discrete Power
products group to Fairchild Semiconductor Corporation
(“Fairchild”) for $338.0 million in cash and the assumption by
Fairchild of certain liabilities of the product group. The Consoli-
dated Balance Sheet as of December 28, 2001, has been reduced
by the assets purchased and liabilities assumed by Fairchild.

Additionally, the operating results of our Discrete Power
products group are shown within continuing operations in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

On May 14, 2002, we consummated the merger with
Elantec. The merger was accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting and, accordingly, the results of opera-
tions of Elantec have been included in the accompanying
financial schedules since the merger date.

On July 15, 2003, we announced that we had entered into
a definitive agreement to sell our Wireless Networking prod-
uct group to GlobespanVirata, Inc. (“GlobespanVirata”). The
Wireless Networking product group provides complete silicon,
software and reference design solutions that meet the IEEE’s
802.11 standards. The sale was consummated on August 28,
2003. We received $250 million in cash and approximately
$114.4 million in GlobespanVirata stock. We also retained the
accounts receivable and accounts payable of the product
group in place at the time of sale.

The following results and discussion of the results of oper-
ations reflect reclassifications for discontinued operations in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 144 (“SFAS 144”), “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” We adopted SFAS 144 on
December 29, 2001.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142
(“SFAS 142”), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which
we adopted on December 29, 2001. Under these new rules,
goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite
lives are no longer amortized but are subject to annual
impairment tests. Other intangible assets will continue to 
be amortized over their estimated useful lives. As required 
by SFAS 142, we ceased amortizing goodwill and other
indefinite-lived intangible assets beginning December 29,
2001. Included in the above is assembled workforce, which
under SFAS 142, is defined as an indefinite-lived asset.
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Fiscal Year 2003 Compared With Fiscal Year 2002

The following table sets forth statement of operations data in dollars and as a percentage of revenue for the periods indicated:

Year Ended Year Ended

January 2, January 3, January 2, January 3,
($ in thousands) 2004 2003 2004 2003

Revenue $507,684 $419,559 100.0% 100.0%
Costs and expenses

Cost of product sales(a) 221,757 200,142 43.7% 47.7%
Research and development (b) 91,267 77,943 18.0% 18.6%
Selling, general and administrative(b) 88,274 89,598 17.4% 21.4%
Amortization of intangibles 6,298 6,783 1.2% 1.6%
Amortization of unearned compensation 10,212 12,510 2.0% 3.0%
In-process research and development — 53,816 — 12.8%
Impairment of long-lived assets 12,576 5,909 2.5% 1.4%
Restructuring 4,887 4,744 0.1% 1.1%

Operating income (loss) 72,413 (31,886) 14.3% (7.6)%
Interest income, net 8,958 11,268 1.8% 2.7%
Gain (loss) on investments (3,443) 1,264 (0.7)% 0.3%
Gain on sale of certain operations 1,428 — 0.3% —

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 79,356 (19,354) 15.6% (4.6)%
Income taxes 20,899 3,942 4.1% 0.9%

Income (loss) from continuing operations 58,457 (23,296) 11.5% (5.6)%
Discontinued operations

Income from discontinued operations 19,983 33,300 3.9% 7.9%
Income taxes from discontinued operations 32,603 14,974 6.4% 3.6%

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations (12,620) 18,326 (2.5)% 4.4%

Net income (loss) $ 45,837 $ (4,970) 9.0% (1.2)%

Note: Percentages may not add due to rounding.

(a) Cost of product sales includes the following:

Unearned compensation $ 1,768 $ 1,992 0.3% 0.5%

(b) Unearned compensation is excluded from the following:

Research and development $ 3,864 $ 5,724 0.8% 1.4%
Selling, general and administrative 6,348 6,786 1.3% 1.6%

$ 10,212 $ 12,510 2.0% 3.0%
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Revenue
Revenue from continuing operations for fiscal year 2003
increased 21.0% to $507.7 million from $419.6 million during
fiscal year 2002. Increased demand for desktop and notebook
power management, optical storage and DSL products
increased revenue by $77.2 million. In addition, fiscal year 2003
contained a full year of Elantec revenues and fiscal year 2002
contained approximately six months of such revenues. This
resulted in an additional $41.8 million in revenue for fiscal year
2003. We also changed our revenue recognition for North
American distribution in fiscal year 2002, which caused rev-
enues to be higher in fiscal year 2003 by $14.7 million. These
increases were offset by a $45.4 million decline in automotive
related products as a result of our exit of that product group.

Geographically, 59.6%, 26.6% and 13.8% of product sales
were derived from Asia/Pacific, North America and Europe,
respectively, during fiscal year 2003 compared to 48.9%, 31.1%

and 20.0% during fiscal year 2002. The increase in the percent-
age of revenue generated from Asia/Pacific in 2002 over 2003
is primarily due to the acquisition of Elantec, which shipped
approximately 40% of its products to Japan during fiscal year
2003. We ship our products to a variety of countries (in
descending order by volume) including the United States,
China, Taiwan, Japan, Germany, Singapore, Korea, Thailand,
United Kingdom and Malaysia as well as others with less 
volume. The United States comprised approximately 25% of
the shipments, followed by China with 24% and Taiwan with
13% during fiscal year 2003. Significant customers in the
United States include two of our major distributors, who
accounted for 20% and 18% of our revenues in the region,
respectively. Also, during fiscal year 2003, we made significant
sales to one distributor that supports customers in Taiwan and
China. This distributor comprised approximately 58% of our
sales to Taiwan and 18% of our sales to China.



Gross Profit
Cost of product sales consists primarily of purchased materials,
labor and overhead (including depreciation) associated with
product manufacturing, plus licensing and sustaining engineer-
ing expenses pertaining to products sold. In fiscal year 2003,
gross profit from continuing operations increased 30.3% or
$66.5 million to $285.9 million from $219.4 million in fiscal year
2002. As a percentage of sales, gross margin from continuing
operations was 56.3% during fiscal year 2003 compared to
52.3% during fiscal year 2002, a 4-percentage point improve-
ment. The primary driver of the increase, was growth in revenue,
which increased gross profit by $43.6 million. In addition, the
full year of Elantec increased gross profit by $22.4 million. The
closure of our Findlay facility in mid 2002, improved gross profit
by approximately $10.5 million. We also changed our revenue
recognition policy during fiscal year 2002 due to changes in our
ability to estimate product returns. Since this change was not
repeated in fiscal year 2003, gross profit improved by $10.2 mil-
lion. The exit of our lower margin Automotive products group
decreased gross profit by $19.8 million. Approximately one-
third of our wafer manufacturing is performed by third-party
foundries. We continue to analyze our mix of internal versus
external manufacturing and any decision to increase our volume
at third-party foundries could have an affect on the carrying
value of our internal fabrication equipment.

Research and Development (“R&D”)
R&D expenses consist primarily of salaries and costs of
employees engaged in product/process research, design
and development activities, as well as related subcontracting
activities, prototype development, cost of design tools and
technology license agreement expenses. R&D expenses from
continuing operations increased 17.2% to $91.3 million during
fiscal year 2003, from $77.9 million during fiscal year 2002. The
full year impact of the acquisition of Elantec contributed
approximately $10 million in additional spending during the
first four and one-half months of fiscal year 2003. Also, we
increased overall R&D expenditures primarily on payroll, which
contributed to a record year for new product introductions:
312 in 2003 versus 158 in 2002.

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”)
SG&A costs, which include marketing, selling, general and
administrative expenses, from continuing operations was 
relatively flat with expenses of $88.3 million during fiscal year
2003, compared to $89.6 million during fiscal year 2002. How-
ever, as a percentage of sales, SG&A costs decreased to 17.4%
in fiscal year 2003 from 21.4% in fiscal year 2002. This decrease
is primarily due to workforce reduction actions taken during
2002 and 2003. Specifically, we expect to see annual savings of
$3.0 million, $2.1 million and $2.6 million in future periods for
actions taken for the integration of Elantec (second quarter
2002), a workforce reduction (first quarter 2003) and the
Wireless Networking product group divestiture (third quarter
2003), respectively. These savings were partially offset by 
the full year effects of the SG&A costs for Elantec, which
contributed approximately $6.1 million in increased spending.

Amortization
Amortization of intangible assets from continuing operations
decreased to $6.3 million during fiscal year 2003 from $6.8 mil-
lion during fiscal year 2002. Definite-lived assets are being
amortized over their useful lives ranging from 9 to 11 years.

Currently, SFAS 142 requires testing goodwill for impair-
ment at least annually while checking for impairment indicators
quarterly. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we determined
that the value of each of our reporting units exceeded its
book value. Therefore, no impairments were taken.
Depending on the future market demand for our products,
among other factors, we could experience an impairment on
this balance.

Unearned Compensation
Amortization of unearned compensation from continuing
operations decreased to $12.0 million during fiscal year 2003
from $14.5 million during fiscal year 2002. This decrease is 
the result of the winding down of unearned compensation
resulting from the Elantec merger.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
During fiscal year 2002, we recorded two impairments totaling
$5.9 million. The first impairment of $3.6 million ($2.3 million
net of tax) related to the property, plant and equipment within
the Findlay, Ohio manufacturing facility. The write-down
reduced the carrying value of the assets to their fair value,
which was based on the contractual sales price of the assets in
accordance with SFAS 144. Prior to this impairment, the carrying
value of the Findlay assets was $5.2 million. As these assets were
held and used until their disposal, we continued depreciation
over their remaining useful lives. The remaining $2.3 million
($1.3 million net of tax) impairment is primarily related to the
adjustment of idle equipment to their fair value based on
estimated future cash flows from these assets in accordance
with SFAS 144.

We recorded an impairment of long-lived assets of
$12.6 million ($7.5 million net of tax) during fiscal year 2003.
This primarily consisted of a $10.4 million ($6.4 million net of
tax) write-down of certain definite-lived intangible assets,
which were tested for impairment following the sale of our
Wireless Networking product group. Specifically, we impaired
a portion of its customer base and developed technology
balances that resulted from the purchase of the net assets 
of Harris Corporation’s semiconductor business. The impair-
ments were measured as the excess of the assets’ carrying
value over the assets fair value as determined by the present
value of cash flows arising from the assets in accordance with
SFAS 144. Also included in the aforementioned $12.6 million
impairment was a $2.0 million impairment ($1.2 million after
tax) related to the write-off of a prepaid royalty for which we
were not going to incorporate the related technology into our
products. In accordance with SFAS 144, the write-off reduced
the value of the prepaid to zero as we did not expect to realize
any future benefit from the asset.
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Gain (Loss) on Investments
During fiscal year 2002, we recorded a gain of $1.3 million 
($0.8 million after tax) from the sale of our investment in
PowerSmart, Inc. The gain was calculated as the excess of 
the proceeds from disposition of the investment over its
carrying value.

During fiscal year 2003, we recorded an impairment
charge of $13.0 million related to an investment, which is
accounted for under the cost method of accounting since we
hold less than 20% ownership and can not exercise influence
over the investee. The impairment reflects the excess of the
investment’s carrying value over the estimated undiscounted
cash flows resulting from the eventual disposal of the securities.
The impairment was a result of a significant reorganization at
the investee, which we believe, substantially eliminated their
chances of making a profit in the future.

During fiscal year 2003, we recognized a $7.2 million 
gain ($4.7 million after tax) from the sale of all shares of
GlobespanVirata common stock received as part of the sale
(15,462,185 shares). The gain was calculated as the net pro-
ceeds from the sale less the carrying value of the stock, which
was determined as the fair market value during the five-day
period including the date of the transaction and the two days
preceding and succeeding this date. The GlobespanVirata
common stock represented a portion of the consideration
paid to us by GlobespanVirata in connection with the sale of
our Wireless Networking product group.

During fiscal year 2003, we recorded a gain of $0.6 million
($0.4 million after tax) from the collection of previously
escrowed funds resulting from the sale of our investment in
PowerSmart, Inc., in June 2002. The entire escrow receipt was
recorded as a gain as the investment had no carrying value.

Marketable securities consist of shares of ChipPAC, Inc.
(“ChipPAC”) common stock that have been classified as
investments on the balance sheet. They are recorded at fair
value, which is determined based on quoted market prices. As
of January 2, 2004, we carried an unrealized gain on the invest-
ment of $1.7 million, before taxes. We held 998,816 shares, or
approximately 1% of total ChipPAC shares outstanding, at
January 2, 2004.

In-Process Research and Development
In connection with our merger with Elantec in May 2002, we
allocated $53.8 million of the purchase price to in-process
research and development projects. This allocation represents
the estimated fair value based on risk-adjusted cash flows
related to the incomplete projects. At the date of the merger,
the development of these projects had not yet reached
technological feasibility and the in-process research and
development had no alternative future uses and did not other-
wise qualify for capitalization. Accordingly, these costs were
expensed as a charge to income in fiscal year 2002.

In making the purchase price allocation, our management
relied on present value calculations of income, an analysis of
project accomplishments and completion costs, and an assess-
ment of overall contribution and project risk. The present

value was determined by discounting two to eight years of after
tax cash flow projections depending on the individual project.
We used a discount rate of 13% based on an approximation
of the cost of capital. The percentage of completion for the
projects ranges from 10% to 90%, and the total cost to complete
all projects at the time of the acquisition was approximately
$38.4 million. The various project groupings, the cost to
complete the projects and the average percentage complete
within each grouping as of January 2, 2004, are set forth in the
table below ($ in millions):

Average Value
Number Cost to Percent Assigned

Project Group of Projects Complete Complete to Project

Optical Storage 61 $ 3.6 82% $13.8
Communications 7 0.7 70% 1.6
DC/DC Converters 26 5.9 46% 5.8
Amplifiers and 

Comparators 83 4.7 50% 18.6
Other Video 46 7.8 26% 10.2
TFT Buffers 17 1.3 62% 3.8

Total 240 $24.0 $53.8

Although these estimates were developed with the assis-
tance of an independent third-party, management is primarily
responsible for the valuation. These estimates are subject to
change given the uncertainties of the development process,
and no assurance can be given that deviations from these
estimates will not occur. We expect to continue these devel-
opment efforts and believe we have a reasonable chance 
of successfully completing the research and development
programs. However, there is risk associated with the completion
of the projects, and there is no assurance that any will meet
either technological or commercial success.

Interest Income/Expense
Interest income decreased to $9.6 million during fiscal year
2003 from $12.1 million during fiscal year 2002. The decrease
was due to a decrease in short-term interest rates during fiscal
years 2002 and 2003. This was partially offset by our investments
in long-term held-to-maturity investments. Interest expense
also decreased to $0.6 million from $0.8 million for the same
time periods.

Tax Expense
The tax rate for fiscal year 2003 of 26% differs from the tax
expense for fiscal year 2002 of (20)% due primarily to the
write-off of in-process research and development resulting
from the Elantec acquisition during the second quarter of
2002. This difference in rates can also be attributed to higher
research and development credits, increased sales in lower tax
jurisdictions and a shift from taxable to tax-exempt investments
during 2003.

In determining net income, we must make certain esti-
mates and judgments in the calculation of tax expense and tax
liabilities and in the recoverability of deferred tax assets that
arise from temporary differences between the tax and financial
statement recognition of revenues and expenses.
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In the ordinary course of business, there may be many
transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax outcome
is uncertain. The calculation of tax liabilities involves dealing
with uncertainties in the application of complex tax laws. We
recognize potential liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues in
the United States and other tax jurisdictions based on an
estimate of the ultimate resolution of whether, and the extent
to which, additional taxes will be due. Although we believe
the estimates are reasonable, no assurance can be given that
the final outcome of these matters will not be different than
what is reflected in the historical income tax provisions and
accruals. Such differences could have a material impact on the

income tax provision and operating results in the period in
which such determination is made.

In addition to the risks to the effective tax rate described
above, the effective tax rate reflected in forward-looking state-
ments is based on current enacted tax law. Significant changes
in enacted tax law could materially affect these estimates.

Backlog
We had backlog at January 2, 2004, of $83.6 million compared
to $98.1 million at January 3, 2003. The backlog as of January 3,
2003, excludes $33.2 million related to the Wireless Networking
product group.
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Fiscal Year 2002 Compared With Fiscal Year 2001

The following table sets forth statement of operations data in dollars and as a percentage of revenue for the periods indicated below:

Year Ended Year Ended

January 3, December 28, January 3, December 28,

($ in thousands) 2003 2001 2003 2001

Revenue $419,559 $398,542 100.0% 100.0%
Costs and expenses

Cost of product sales(a) 200,142 217,842 47.7% 54.7%
Research and development (b) 77,943 66,708 18.6% 16.7%
Selling, general and administrative(b) 89,598 75,079 21.4% 18.8%
Amortization of intangibles 6,783 7,357 1.6% 1.8%
Amortization of unearned compensation 12,510 — 3.0% —
In-process research and development 53,816 — 12.8% —
Impairment of long-lived assets 5,909 7,583 1.4% 1.9%
Restructuring 4,744 22,662 1.1% 5.7%

Operating income (loss) (31,886) 1,311 (7.6)% 0.3%
Interest income, net 11,268 18,610 2.7% 4.7%
Loss on extinguishment of debt — 19,733 — 5.0%
Gain (loss) on investments 1,264 (8,242) 0.3% (2.1)%
Gain on sale of certain operations — 168,437 — 42.3%

Income (loss) before income taxes (19,354) 160,383 (4.6)% 40.2%
Income taxes 3,942 64,430 0.9% 16.2%

Income (loss) before discontinued operations (23,296) 95,953 (5.6)% 24.1%
Discontinued operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations 33,300 (65,641) 7.9% (16.5)%
Income taxes (benefit) from discontinued operations 14,974 (9,577) 3.6% (2.4)%

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations 18,326 (56,064) 4.4% (14.1)%

Net income (loss) $ (4,970) $ 39,889 (1.2)% 10.0%

(a) Cost of product sales includes the following:

Unearned compensation $ 1,992 $ — 0.5% —

(b) Unearned compensation is excluded from the following:

Research and development $ 5,724 $ — 1.4% —
Selling, general and administrative 6,786 — 1.6% —

$ 12,510 $ — 3.0% —



Revenue
Revenue from continuing operations for fiscal year 2002
increased 5.3% to $419.6 million from $398.5 million during
fiscal year 2001. The acquisition of Elantec during the second
quarter of 2002 contributed $63.6 million to the increase in
sales year over year. Also, our Power Management product
group grew $46.7 million due to increased demand in Desktop
computer products. The exits of our Discrete Power and
Automotive product groups offset revenue increases by
$48.8 million. We also experienced a decline in revenue of
approximately $25.8 million due to an economic downturn in
the communications end market. In addition, our change in
revenue recognition decreased revenue by $14.7 million.

Geographically, 48.9%, 31.1% and 20.1% of product sales
were derived in Asia/Pacific, North America and Europe,
respectively, during fiscal year 2002 compared to 37.0%, 38.3%
and 24.7% during fiscal year 2001. This change is the result of
increased demand from Asian-based customers and increased
customer use of Asian-based contract manufacturers. Also, the
acquisition of Elantec contributed to the increase in this region
as that product group’s sales are generated primarily from
shipments to Japan.

Gross Profit
In fiscal year 2002, gross profit on product sales increased
21.4% or $38.7 million to $219.4 million from $180.7 million in
fiscal year 2001. As a percentage of sales, gross margin was
52.3% during fiscal year 2002 compared to 45.3% during fiscal
year 2001, a 7.0 percentage point improvement. The acquisition
of Elantec, which increased our mix of higher margin products,
improved gross profit by $35.9 million. In addition, we closed
our Findlay fabrication facility in fiscal year 2002, which had
approximately a $10.5 million improvement on gross profit.
These improvements were primarily offset by a $10.2 million
decline as a result of our change in revenue recognition for
North American distributors.

Research and Development (“R&D”)
R&D expenses increased 16.8% to $77.9 million during fiscal year
2002 from $66.7 million during fiscal year 2001. As a percentage
of sales, R&D expenses increased to 18.6% for fiscal year 2002
from 16.7% for fiscal year 2001. The acquisition of Elantec
contributed approximately $13.7 million to the overall increase
as well as increased spending in our Power Management
product development.

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”)
SG&A costs increased to $89.6 million during fiscal year 2002
from $75.1 million during fiscal year 2001. As a percentage
of sales, SG&A costs increased to 21.4% for 2002 from 18.8%
for fiscal year 2001. The acquisition of Elantec was again the
primary driver for this increase with approximately $10.4 million
of SG&A expenses during 2002.

Amortization
Amortization of intangible assets decreased to $6.8 million for
fiscal year 2002 from $7.4 million for the same time period in
fiscal year 2001.

Unearned Compensation
Amortization of unearned compensation was $14.5 million
during fiscal year 2002. This was a result of the acquisition of
Elantec and is the intrinsic value of unvested Elantec options
outstanding at the time of the merger. The intrinsic value of
each option was calculated as the excess of the fair market
value of one share of our Class A common stock as deter-
mined using the average closing sales price of our Class A
common stock on May 13, 2002, and May 14, 2002, of $28.41
over the option price. The unearned compensation costs are
recognized over the remaining vesting period of the options
as an operating expense.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
In connection with the closure of our Findlay, Ohio manufac-
turing operation, we recorded an impairment of $7.6 million
($3.7 million after tax) on the property, plant and equipment
during fiscal year 2001. The impairment was determined by
comparing the carrying value of the assets to an appraised
value on the land, equipment and buildings, and the expected
future undiscounted net cash flows from the equipment to be
disposed of in accordance with SFAS 121.

During fiscal year 2002, we recorded two impairments
totaling $5.9 million. The first impairment of $3.6 million
($2.3 million net of tax) related to the property, plant and
equipment within the Findlay, Ohio manufacturing facility. The
write-down reduced the carrying value of the assets to their
fair value, which was based on the contractual sales price of
the assets. Prior to this impairment, the carrying value of the
Findlay assets was $5.2 million. As these assets were held and
used until their disposal, we continued depreciation over their
remaining useful lives. The remaining $2.3 million ($1.3 million
net of tax) impairment is primarily related to the adjustment of
idle equipment to their fair value based on estimated future
cash flows from these assets.

Interest Income/Expense
Interest income decreased to $12.1 million during fiscal year
2002 from $20.9 million during fiscal year 2001. The decrease
was due to a decrease in short-term interest rates during fiscal
years 2001 and 2002. Interest expense also decreased to
$0.8 million in fiscal year 2002 from $2.3 million in fiscal year
2001. This decrease was due to the elimination of our long-
term debt during the first quarter of fiscal year 2001.

Gain (Loss) on Investments
Marketable securities consist of shares of ChipPAC common
stock that have been classified as other long-term investments.
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They are recorded at fair value, which is determined based on
quoted market prices. During fiscal year 2001, we recorded an
impairment charge of $8.2 million related to our investment in
ChipPAC common stock, which reflected an other-than-
temporary decline in value. In arriving at this decision, we
considered various factors, including the fact that ChipPAC’s
stock price was less than its carrying value during two consec-
utive quarters. We also considered the overall macroeconomic
condition of the semiconductor industry at the time.

During fiscal year 2002, we recorded a gain of $1.3 mil-
lion ($0.8 million after tax) from the sale of our investment 
in PowerSmart, Inc. The gain was calculated as the excess 
of the proceeds from disposition of the investment over its
carrying value.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt
During fiscal year 2001, we repurchased all $61.4 million of our
outstanding 13.25% Senior Subordinated Notes in the open
market. These repayments included certain pre-payment
penalties and accrued interest. In connection with the early
extinguishment of debt, we recorded a $19.7 million charge
($12.2 million net of tax). The charges consisted of the write-off
of deferred financing fees and premiums paid on repurchase.

Gain on Sale of Certain Operations
On March 16, 2001, we sold the assets of the Discrete Power
product group to Fairchild for $338.0 million in cash and the
assumption by Fairchild of certain liabilities of the product
group. As a result of the sale, we recognized a gain of $168.4 mil-
lion ($81.8 million after tax), which was net of the assets 
purchased and liabilities assumed by Fairchild, transaction
fees and other exit costs associated with the sale. The exit
costs include employee termination benefits to be incurred
within one year from the sale date, as well as information
technology costs required to cover transferred software
license fees and system modifications necessary to support
the business transition activity. We also closed three foreign
sales offices as a result of the sale. Also, included in the calcu-
lation of the gain was the write-off of $14.8 million of intangible
assets that were related to our formation from the assets of
Harris Corporation’s Semiconductor Business in August 1999.
The assets represent the developed technology, customer
base and assembled workforce for the Discrete Power product
group, which were derived from the original valuation 
completed at the time of the acquisition.

Tax Expense
The tax rate of 40% for fiscal year 2001 differs from the tax rate
for fiscal year 2002 by (20)% primarily due to the gain gener-
ated from the sale of our Discrete Power products group
recorded during fiscal year 2001, and the write-off of Elantec’s
in-process R&D in fiscal year 2002.

Backlog
We had backlog at January 3, 2003 of $98.1 million compared
to $85.9 million at December 28, 2001. This excludes $33.2 mil-
lion and $34.9 million related to the Wireless Networking
product group.

Business Outlook

On January 28, 2004, we announced our outlook for the first
quarter of 2004. We expected revenue for the first quarter to be
equal to or slightly above the revenue for the fourth quarter of
fiscal year 2003. We also expected cost of product sales,
research and development and selling, general and adminis-
trative costs to generally trend in the same direction as revenue.
We expected intangible amortization expense to be $1.2 million
and amortization of unearned compensation to be $1.6 mil-
lion. We expected our effective tax rate to be approximately
26%–28% for fiscal year 2004. We expected to finalize the
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) audits for calendar years 1999
and 2000 by the end of the first quarter of 2004. This could have
a material positive impact on our tax provision and operating
results for fiscal year 2004.

Restructurings

March 2001
In March 2001, our Board of Directors approved and we
announced major restructuring activities to improve ongoing
operations and product gross margins. This restructuring plan
was predicated on the phased closure of our Findlay, Ohio
manufacturing operation and the exit of the modem board
assembly manufacturing process in Scottsdale, Arizona. In
connection with the restructuring, we recorded expenses of
approximately $22.7 million ($13.9 million after tax) within
continuing operations during fiscal year 2001. Costs of the
restructuring plan include employee termination costs, costs
incurred to decontaminate and defacilitate the fabrication
facility and contract cancellation costs. Employee termination
costs include involuntary severance payments and outplace-
ment training. Decontamination and defacilitation costs include
costs for removing and disposing of air handlers, exhausts,
structural steel, process cooling loops, gas piping and acid
distribution systems used in conjunction with equipment.
Other decommission costs include costs to secure equipment
remaining on site after closure. Contract cancellation costs
include fees charged to us under non-cancelable purchase
orders from three vendors. In connection with the announced
restructuring, approximately 522 employees were notified
that their employment would be terminated and were
apprised of the specifics of their severance benefits. The
affected positions included manufacturing, selling, general
and administrative employees. 521 of the employees were

sixteen



located in the United States and 1 was located in Europe. The
sale of the Findlay, Ohio manufacturing operation was com-
pleted late in September 2002, and, accordingly, all of the
affected employees had been terminated as of January 2,
2004. No remaining activities exist with respect to the exe-
cution of this plan. We estimated that annual savings of cost
of product sales would be approximately $25.0 million to
$30.0 million annually. These savings are largely in the form of
decreased payroll, healthcare costs, and factory overhead,
which is comprised of depreciation, utilities and property
taxes. Although determination of actual savings is difficult to
determine because of changes in product mix, technological
specifications and product demand, we believe that actual
savings have been approximately $21.0 million annually.

June 2002
After the merger with Elantec, we accrued for restructuring
activities relating to the consolidation of the combined entity’s
business operations. These costs were not included in the
purchase price determination and the allocation thereof as
they relate to our activities that were conducted prior to the
merger. As a result of the restructuring, we recorded a charge
of $4.7 million ($2.8 million after tax) in continuing operations
during fiscal year 2002. The restructuring plan includes
employee termination costs and the elimination of certain
sales and marketing activities existing prior to the merger.
Employee termination costs include involuntary severance
payments and outplacement training. Costs incurred to
eliminate certain sales and marketing activities include lease
cancellation costs and costs associated with the termination of
sales representative agreements. As a result of the merger
with Elantec, 24 of our employees were notified that their
employment would be terminated and were apprised of the
specifics of their severance benefits. Affected positions included
primarily selling employees, of whom 13 were located in the
United States, 7 in Europe and 4 in Asia. As of January 2, 2004,
all of the affected employees had been terminated. No
remaining activities exist with respect to the execution of this
plan. We estimated that annual savings of selling, general and
administrative costs to be approximately $3.0 million, which
includes decreased payroll, healthcare costs, sales office lease
expenses, and decreased payments to sales representatives.
We believe there has not been significant variances between
the expected savings and actual savings.

January 2003
In January 2003, we announced a cost reduction initiative pred-
icated on a 3% reduction in workforce. Due to the implementa-
tion of SFAS 146, severance related costs cannot be expensed
until incurred. However, the severance agreements under this
restructuring plan entitle terminated employees to benefits
upon notification of termination. Accordingly, we expensed
$1.3 million ($0.8 million net of tax) in continuing operations
during fiscal year 2003. The restructuring plan includes

employee termination costs, which include involuntary sever-
ance payments and outplacement training. In connection with
the cost reduction initiative, 22 employees were notified that
their employment would be terminated and were apprised of
the specifics of their severance benefits. The affected positions
included manufacturing, selling, general and administrative
employees; all of such employees were located in the United
States. As of January 2, 2004, all of the affected employees had
been terminated. No remaining activities exist with respect to
the execution of this plan. We estimate that annual savings of
cost of product sales are approximately $0.2 million. We also
estimate that annual savings of research and development
expenses are $0.1 million. Finally, we estimate that annual savings
of selling, general and administrative expenses are $2.1 mil-
lion. These savings are in the form of decreased payroll and
healthcare costs. We believe there have not been significant
variances between the planned savings and actual savings.

August 2003
In August 2003, we announced a restructuring plan that
coincided with the sale of our Wireless Networking product
group. The restructuring plan includes the termination of
approximately 8% of the remaining workforce and the closure
of three sales office locations in the United States and Europe.
In accordance with Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 146 (“SFAS 146”), “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” a company can
only accrue costs related to liabilities that have been incurred.
The terms of the relevant severance benefits stipulate that an
employee is entitled to payments if that employee remains
employed with us through his or her termination date. Thus
during fiscal year 2003, we recorded charges of $4.1 million for
the portion of severance benefits and lease payments that we
were obligated to pay as of January 2, 2004. Employee termi-
nation costs include involuntary severance payments and the
provision of outplacement training. In connection with the cost
reduction initiative, 129 employees were notified that their
employment would be terminated and were apprised of the
specifics of their severance benefits. The affected positions
included manufacturing, research and development, and selling,
general and administrative employees; 119 of such employees
were located in the United States, 6 in Europe and 4 in Asia.
As of January 2, 2004, 98% of the affected employees had
been terminated. The remaining employees will be termi-
nated within the next 12 months at a cost of $0.1 million. We
estimate that annual savings of cost of product sales are
approximately $4.2 million. We also estimate that annual sav-
ings of research and development expenses are $1.1 million.
Finally, we estimate that annual savings of selling, general and
administrative expenses are $2.6 million. These savings are in
the form of decreased payroll, healthcare costs and lease
expenses. Due to the recent date of this plan, it is difficult to
ascertain if there have been significant variances between the
expected savings and actual savings.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The following table sets forth our future contractual obligations, all of which are off-balance sheet arrangements, as of January 2, 2004:

($ in millions) Payment Due By Period

Less Than More Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1–3 Years 3–5 Years 5 Years

Future minimum operating lease commitments $11.3 $ 4.4 $4.5 $1.7 $0.7
Test and package purchase commitment see below see below see below — —
Open capital equipment purchase commitments $ 3.2 $ 3.2 — — —
Open raw material purchase commitments $12.0 $12.0 — — —
Standby letters of credit $ 4.0 $ 4.0 — — —

Total $30.5 $23.6 $4.5 $1.7 $0.7
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Our future minimum lease commitments consist primarily
of leases for buildings and other real property. Open raw
material purchase commitments are comprised of purchase
orders for foundry wafers ($7.8 million), silicon wafers ($0.4 mil-
lion) as well other miscellaneous expense items. We utilize
standby letters of credit primarily for security for workers com-
pensation ($1.5 million), environmental items ($1.3 million),
electricity ($0.7 million) as well as for security for our vendors.
These standby letters of credit have annual renewals.

We have an agreement in place with ChipPAC pursuant
to which they provide us with, among other things, testing
and packaging services for fees, subject to certain limits and
exceptions, including competitive pricing. The initial term of
this agreement expires on June 30, 2005.

We do not have any guarantees that would affect our
liquidity, cash flow or financial position. We do not have any
relationships with other parties that would have a negative
impact on our liquidity, cash flow or financial position.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our capital requirements depend on a variety of factors,
including but not limited to, the rate of increase or decrease in
our existing business base; the success, timing and amount of
investment required to bring new products on-line; revenue
growth or decline; and potential acquisitions. We believe that
we have the financial resources necessary to meet business
requirements for the next 12 months, including the requisite
capital expenditures for the expansion or upgrading of world-
wide manufacturing capacity, working capital requirements,
our dividend program, our treasury share repurchase program
and potential future acquisitions or strategic investments. 
As of January 2, 2004, our total shareholders’ equity was
$2,252.1 million. Also, we had $819.5 million in cash and short-
term securities, as well as $144.5 million in long-term investments
held to maturity.

Net cash provided by operating activities for fiscal year
2003 was $71.1 million. This was primarily due to operating
income of $72.4 million. This was offset by our changes in
assets and liabilities of $21.8 million including increased inven-
tories (for both our continuing and discontinued operations)
offset by timing of income tax payments. Net cash provided by

investing activities for fiscal year 2003 was $147.2 million. We
have received $250 million in cash proceeds from the sale of
our Wireless Networking product group to GlobespanVirata.
This was offset by $12.5 million of transaction costs relating to
the sale. We also received $126.7 million in proceeds from the
sale of GlobespanVirata and ChipPAC common stock during
fiscal year 2003. This was offset by investments in long-term
cash investments of $144.5 million to improve interest yields
and $62.5 million in property, plant and equipment to increase
our production capacity. We expect our expenditures for prop-
erty, plant and equipment to be within the $30 million to
$40 million range during fiscal year 2004. Net cash used by
financing activities for fiscal year 2003 was $30.5 million resulting
from purchase of treasury stock under the stock repurchase
plan offset by the proceeds of exercised stock options. We
expect to continue this level of share repurchases for the fore-
seeable future. Our cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments balance at January 2, 2004 was $819.5 million.

We have a treasury stock repurchase program, which
authorizes us to repurchase up to $150.0 million in our common
stock, of which $82.1 million had been used as of January 2,
2004. The program was set to expire on September 26, 2002,
but by a vote of the Board of Directors it has been extended
through December 2004.

We have separately classified on the face of the balance
sheet our current held-to-maturity investments, which consist
of securities with maturities less than one year but greater than
90 days. These balances can be converted to cash upon
request at a minimal discount. We have reclassified prior
period balance sheet and cash flow information to conform
with the current classification.

Working Capital

Trade accounts receivable, less the allowance for collection
losses, totaled $82.6 million at January 2, 2004, compared to
$93.9 million at January 3, 2003. This decrease was a result of
the sale of our Wireless Networking product group, which had
over $20 million in receivables at the time of the sale, the
majority of which had been collected by the end of fiscal year
2003. However, inventories increased 37% to $83.6 million at
January 2, 2004, from $61.0 million at January 3, 2003. The



majority of the increase is attributable to purchases made in
order to build end-of-life inventory for Elantec products in
anticipation of moving the production operations to Palm Bay
from Milpitas, as well as buffer inventory for our power man-
agement products required by certain customers. Our income
taxes payable also increased $57.7 million from $26.3 million
driven primarily by income tax provisions relating to the sale of
our Wireless Networking group. Trade accounts payable
decreased $14.8 million as we saw reduced purchases from the
foundries we used for Wireless Networking product materials,
as well as decreased expenditures on manufacturing equip-
ment. However, litigation accruals increased $11.9 million from
fiscal year 2002 to fiscal year 2003. This was primarily driven by
our lawsuit with Agere.

Sales reserves fluctuate from year to year based on items
such as the level of inventory at distributors and customer
returns near year end as well as sales volume. The sales
reserves increased 14.2% to $9.7 million at January 2, 2004
from $8.5 million at January 3, 2003. This increase was driven
by increased sales volume of 21% over fiscal year 2002 as well
as rebates of approximately $0.8 million.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures were $62.5 million for fiscal year 2003 and
$53.0 million for fiscal year 2002. The increase is due primarily to
increased investments in our foundry operations, for which we
spent $12.9 million during fiscal year 2003. Additional capital
expenditures during fiscal year 2003 includes the expansion of
our fabrication facility in Palm Bay, Florida, in order to accom-
modate the transfer of certain production processes from our
Findlay, Ohio and Milpitas, California facilities, as well as
general manufacturing capacity increases of $41.2 million,
research and development capital of $5.7 million and infor-
mation technology equipment of $2.2 million.

Transactions with Related and Certain Other Parties

We hold a receivable balance within the other assets section in
our balance sheet resulting from a loan made to one of our
employees who is neither the CFO nor CEO. The loan, which
totaled $0.5 million at January 3, 2004, was made by Elantec
prior to the merger as part of employment offers. The loan is a
recourse loan, and the security is in the form of a second trust
deed on the employee’s real property. The loan earns interest
in excess of the Prime Rate. The loan is due on April 18, 2007.

We have a contract in place with ChipPAC in which
ChipPAC provides us with testing and packaging services for a
fee, subject to certain limits and exceptions. This commitment
expires June 30, 2005. We had $4.3 million and $3.7 million of
trade accounts payable to ChipPAC as of January 2, 2004 and
January 3, 2003, respectively. All of our obligations under this
agreement are paid in cash and are the result of arm’s-length
transactions. Purchases under this contract during fiscal year
2003 totaled $50.4 million.

Critical Accounting Policies

In response to the SEC’s financial reporting release, FR-60,
“Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical
Accounting Policies,” we have selected our more subjective
accounting estimation processes for purposes of explaining
the methodology used in calculating the estimates, in addition
to the inherent uncertainties pertaining to the estimates, and
the possible effects on our financial condition. The five
accounting estimation processes discussed below are the
allowance for collection losses on trade receivables, reserves
for excess or obsolete inventory, distributor reserves, the
assessment of recoverability of goodwill and tax valuation
allowances. These estimates involve certain assumptions that,
if incorrect, could create an adverse impact on our operations
and financial position. Below, we discuss these policies further,
as well as the estimates and judgments involved. We also have
other policies that we consider key accounting policies; however,
these policies do not meet the definition of critical accounting
policies, because they do not generally require us to make
estimates or judgments that are difficult or subjective.

The allowance for collection losses on trade receivables
was $1.1 million on gross trade receivables of $83.7 million at
January 2, 2004. This allowance is used to state trade receiv-
ables at a net realizable value or the amount that we estimate
will be collected on our gross receivables as of January 2,
2004. Since the amount that we will actually collect on the
receivables outstanding as of January 2, 2004 can not be
known until the future, we rely primarily on prior experience.
Our historical collection losses have been typically infrequent
with write-offs of trade receivables being less than 1% of sales.
We maintain an allowance of approximately 1% of a gross
trade receivable balance in order to allow for future collection
losses that arise from customer accounts that do not indicate
the inability to pay but will have such an inability. We also
maintain a specific allowance for customer accounts that we
know may not be collectible due to various reasons, such as
bankruptcy and other customer liquidity issues. We analyze
our trade receivable portfolio based on the age of each cus-
tomer’s invoice. In this way, we can identify the accounts that
are more likely to have collection problems. We then reserve a
portion or all of the customer’s balance.

The reserve for excess or obsolete inventory was $21.2 mil-
lion at January 2, 2004. The reserve for excess or obsolete
inventory is used to state our inventories at the lower of standard
cost or market as described in the footnotes to the financial
statements. As the ultimate market value that we will recoup
through sales on our inventory levels as of January 2, 2004 can
not be known with exact certainty as of the date of this filing,
we rely on past sales experience and future sales forecasts. In
analyzing our inventory levels, we classify certain inventory as
either excess or obsolete. These classifications are maintained
for all classes of inventory, although due to the commonality
between our products, raw materials are seldom deemed
excess or obsolete. We classify inventory as obsolete if we
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have withdrawn it from the marketplace or if we have had 
no sales of the product for the past 12 months and no sales
forecasted for the next 12 months. We reserve 100% of the
standard cost of obsolete inventory. It is our policy to scrap
obsolete inventory. Reviews are conducted of excess inventory
on a monthly basis. We classify inventory as excess if we have
quantities of product greater than the amounts we have sold
in the past 12 months or have forecasted to sell in the next 12
months. We typically retain excess inventory until the inventory
is sold or reclassified as obsolete. We reserve approximately
40% to 50% of the standard cost of the excess inventory. We
believe that 40% to 50% represents the portion we will not be
able to recover when we attempt to sell this inventory due to
our new product (next generation) introductions and other
technological advancements. For all items identified as excess
or obsolete during the process described above, management
reviews the individual facts and circumstances (i.e. competitive
landscape, industry economic conditions, product lifecycles
and product cannibalization) specific to that inventory.

Distributor reserves were $1.2 million at January 2, 2004.
Revenue is recognized from sales to all other customers,
excluding North American distributors, when a product is
shipped. Sales to international distributors are made under
agreements, which provide the distributors certain price pro-
tection on and rights to periodically exchange a percentage of
unsold inventory they hold. Accordingly, distributor reserves
are amounts within the liability section of the balance sheet
that estimate the amount of inventory adjustments that will be
encountered in the future on the inventory that is held by
international distributors as of the balance sheet date. As the
amount of inventory held by international distributors as of
January 2, 2004 that will be adjusted in the future cannot be
known with certainty as of the date hereof, we rely primarily on
historical international distributor transactions. The interna-
tional distributor reserves comprise two components that are
reasonably estimable. The first component of international
distributor reserves is the price protection reserve, which 
protects the distributors’ gross margins in the event of falling
prices. This reserve is based on the relationship of historical
credits issued to distributors in relation to historical inventory
levels and price paid by the distributor as applied to current
inventory levels. The second component is a stock rotation
reserve, which is based on the percentage of sales made to
certain distributors in Europe, whereby the distributors can
periodically exchange a percentage of older inventories with
newer products. Actual price protection and stock rotation
changes have historically been within management’s expecta-
tions. International distributor reserves are combined with other
product sales reserves within the sales reserves line item on the
balance sheet. These include reserves for unearned revenue
for payments on last time buy products of $3.8 million, price
rebates of $0.8 million, product warranties for $1.2 million, as
well as other revenue related accruals of $2.7 million.

Effective March 30, 2002, we began to recognize revenue
to North American distributors on a sell-through basis. As
such, we now recognize sales to North American distributors
upon shipment to the end customer. Formerly, we recognized
revenue from North American distributor sales upon shipment
to the distributors. The combination of the changes resulting
from the integration with Elantec, changes in the distributor
mix and changes in market pricing affect the estimability of
customer acceptance of our products.

Pursuant to SFAS 142, we completed an initial impairment
review of our goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have
indefinite lives as of December 29, 2001 and found no impair-
ment. According to our accounting policy, we also performed
an annual review during the fourth quarter of 2002, and in both
reviews we found no impairment. We will perform a similar
review in the fourth quarter of each year, or more frequently if
indicators of potential impairment exist. Goodwill is tested
under the two-step method for impairment at a level of report-
ing referred to as a reporting unit. Our reporting units are the
High Performance Analog and Elantec product groups
because they are each managed by a general manager and
have discrete financial information. The first step of the goodwill
impairment test, the purpose of which is to identify potential
impairment, compares the fair value of each reporting unit
with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair value of
a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the
reporting unit is considered not impaired, and the second step
of the impairment test is unnecessary. If the carrying amount of a
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the good-
will impairment test will be performed to measure the amount
of impairment loss, if any. The second step of the goodwill
impairment test, the purpose of which is to measure the amount
of impairment loss, compares the implied fair value of reporting
unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the
carrying amount of reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied
fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss will be recog-
nized in an amount equal to that excess. The loss recognized
cannot exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. After a goodwill
impairment loss is recognized, the adjusted carrying amount
of goodwill will be its new accounting basis.

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated
financial statements we are required to estimate our income
taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This
process involves estimating our actual current tax liability
together with assessing temporary differences resulting from
differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes.
These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities,
which are included within our Consolidated Balance Sheet. We
must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets
will be recovered from future taxable income and to the extent
we believe that recovery is not likely, we must establish a valu-
ation allowance. We have not provided for a valuation
allowance because we believe it is more likely than not that
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our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable
income. At January 2, 2004, our net deferred tax asset
amounted to $49.4 million.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46
(“FIN 46”) “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” This
interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,
“Consolidated Financial Statements,” addresses consolidation
by business enterprises of variable interest entities. Under
current practice, two enterprises generally have been included
in consolidated financial statements because one enterprise
controls the other through voting interests. This interpretation
defines the concept of “variable interests” and requires existing
unconsolidated variable interest entities to be consolidated by
their primary beneficiaries if the entities do not effectively
disperse the risks among the parties involved. This interpreta-
tion applied immediately to variable interest entities created
after January 31, 2003, and to variable interest entities in which
an enterprise obtains an interest after that date. It applied in
the first fiscal year or interim period beginning after June 15,
2003, to variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds a
variable interest that it acquired before February 1, 2003. If it
is reasonably possible that an enterprise will consolidate or
disclose information about a variable interest entity when this
interpretation becomes effective, the enterprise shall disclose
information about those entities in all financial statements
issued after January 31, 2003. The interpretation may be
applied prospectively with a cumulative-effect adjustment 
as of the date on which it is first applied, or by restating previ-
ously issued financial statements for one or more years with 
a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the beginning of the first
year restated. We have completed our assessment of this
interpretation and determined that we are not party to any
variable interest entities as of January 2, 2004.

In April 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 145 (“SFAS 145”), “Rescission of
FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” Under previous
guidance, all gains and losses from extinguishment of debt
were required to be aggregated and, if material, classified as
an extraordinary item, net of related income tax effect. This
Statement eliminates SFAS 4 and thus the extraordinary treat-
ment related to the extinguishment of debt in most instances.
As a result, gains and losses from extinguishment of debt
should be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet
the criteria in APB Opinion 30. The provisions of this State-
ment related to the rescission of Statement 4 shall be applied
in fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. Any gain or loss
on extinguishment of debt that was classified as an extraordinary
item in prior periods presented that does not meet the criteria
in APB Opinion 30 for classification as an extraordinary item

shall be reclassified. We adopted the provisions of this standard
and have reclassified our loss on the extinguishment of debt
for fiscal year 2001 on the face of the Consolidated Statement
of Operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 146 (“SFAS 146”), “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS 146
addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associ-
ated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition
for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs
to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).” SFAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost
associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when
a liability is incurred rather than when an exit or disposal plan
is approved. We adopted the provisions of SFAS 146 for any
exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 149 (“SFAS 149”), “Amendment
of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” This Statement amends and clarifies financial
accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts
(collectively referred to as derivatives) and for hedging activ-
ities under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 133 (“SFAS 133”), “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities.” The statement was effective for
contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003. The
adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on
our financial position or results of operations.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 150 (“SFAS 150”), “Accounting for
Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilities and Equity.” This Statement establishes standards
for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial
instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It
requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is
within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circum-
stances). This standard was effective at the beginning of the
first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, except for
mandatorily redeemable financial instruments of non-public
entities that are subject to the provisions of this Statement for
the first fiscal period beginning after December 15, 2003. The
adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on
our financial position or results of operations.

Subsequent Events

On January 28, 2004, our Board of Directors declared a quar-
terly dividend of $0.03 per share of common stock. Payment of
the dividend was made on February 27, 2004, to shareholders
of record as of the close of business on February 17, 2004.
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Stock Option Disclosures

On November 5, 1999, we adopted the 1999 Equity Compen-
sation Plan (the “Plan”), which became effective on August 13,
1999 for salaried officers and key employees. The Plan origi-
nally authorized the grant of options for up to 7.5 million
shares of our Class A common stock and can include (i) options
intended to constitute incentive stock options under the Inter-
nal Revenue Code, (ii) non-qualified stock options, (iii) restricted
stock, (iv) stock appreciation rights, and (v) phantom share
awards. The number of shares authorized for the Plan was
increased to 17.5 million shares by the shareholders at the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders held May 15, 2001.

Employee and Executive Option Grants
2001 2002 2003

Net grants during the period as % 
of outstanding shares (#) 2.1% 11.3% 2.6%

Grants to listed officers during 
the period as % of total 
options granted (%) 25.4% 20.0% 23.2%

Grants to listed officers during 
the period as % of 
outstanding shares (%) 0.5% 2.3% 0.6%

Cumulative options held by listed 
officers as % of total options 
outstanding (%) 19.5% 21.7% 28.7%
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Summary of Option Activity
Options Outstanding

Shares Available Number of Weighted Average
(shares in thousands) for Options (#) Shares (#) Exercise Price ($)

Total shares as of December 28, 2001 11,170 5,623 $ 26.50
Grants (15,519) 15,519 $ 19.14
Options assumed in acquisitions 8,970 — $ 16.90
Exercises — (905) $ 6.36
Cancellations 893 (893) $ 23.07
Additional shares reserved — — n/a

Total shares as of January 3, 2003 5,514 19,344 $ 21.56
Grants (3,572) 3,572 $ 22.17
Options assumed in acquisitions — — n/a
Exercises (2,501) $ 8.79
Cancellations 2,526 (2,526) $ 28.86
Additional shares reserved — — n/a

Total shares as of January 2, 2004 4,468 17,889 $22.43

In-the-Money and Out-of-the-Money Option Information
Exercisable Unexercisable Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average

As of January 2, 2004 Exercise Exercise Exercise
(shares in thousands) Shares (#) Price ($) Shares (#) Price ($) Shares (#) Price ($)

In-the-Money 5,275 $12.75 4,218 $17.35 9,493 $14.79
Out-of-the-Money 4,335 $33.53 4,061 $28.46 8,396 $31.08
Total Options Outstanding 9,610 $22.12 8,279 $22.80 17,889 $22.43



The following table provides information concerning stock options granted to the executive officers named in the Summary
Compensation Table during fiscal year 2003.

Percentage Potential Realizable Value

Number of of All Options at Assumed Annual Rates

Securities Granted to of Stock Price Appreciation

Underlying All Employees Exercise Expiration for Option Term(5)

Options in Period(3) Price Date(4) 5% 10%

Gregory L. Williams 60,000(1) 1.7% $14.25 2/4/2013 $ 537,705 $1,362,650

Richard M. Beyer 300,000(1) 8.4% $14.25 2/4/2013 $2,688,525 $6,813,249
42,000(2) 1.2% $15.51 3/31/2013 $ 409,675 $1,038,196
42,000(2) 1.2% $26.64 6/30/2013 $ 703,658 $1,783,207
42,000(2) 1.2% $25.13 9/30/2013 $ 663,773 $1,682,131
42,000(2) 1.2% $24.65 1/1/2014 $ 651,095 $1,650,002

Daniel J. Heneghan 25,200(2) 0.7% $15.51 3/31/2013 $ 245,805 $ 622,917
25,200(2) 0.7% $26.64 6/30/2013 $ 422,195 $1,069,924
25,200(2) 0.7% $25.13 9/30/2013 $ 398,264 $1,009,279
25,200(2) 0.7% $24.65 1/1/2014 $ 390,657 $ 990,001

Rick E. Furtney 25,200(2) 0.7% $15.51 3/31/2013 $ 245,805 $ 622,917
25,200(2) 0.7% $26.64 6/30/2013 $ 422,195 $1,069,924
25,200(2) 0.7% $25.13 9/30/2013 $ 398,264 $1,009,279
25,200(2) 0.7% $24.65 1/1/2014 $ 390,657 $ 990,001

Mohan R. Maheswaran 15,750(2) 0.4% $15.51 3/31/2013 $ 153,628 $ 389,323
15,750(2) 0.4% $26.64 6/30/2013 $ 263,872 $ 668,702
15,750(2) 0.4% $25.13 9/30/2013 $ 248,915 $ 630,799
6,250(2) 0.2% $25.67 11/13/2013 $ 100,898 $ 255,696

15,750(2) 0.4% $24.65 1/1/2014 $ 244,160 $ 618,751

Larry J. Ciaccia(6) 15,750(2) 0.4% $15.51 8/27/2004 $ 8,076 $ 16,026
15,750(2) 0.4% $26.64 8/27/2004 $ 13,873 $ 27,527

830,350

(1) Each grant vests over a four-year period at a rate of 25% upon the first anniversary of the grant and 6.25% quarterly thereafter until fully vested.
(2) Each grant vests over a four-year period at a rate of 25% upon each of the first four anniversary dates of the grant.
(3) A total of 3,572,198 options were granted to our employees under the Intersil 1999 Equity Compensation Plan during the fiscal year ended January 2, 2004.
(4) The options will expire ten years after the grant date.
(5) Represents the potential realizable value of the underlying shares of our common stock at the expiration date based on an assumed annual appreciation rate of 5%

and 10% of the exercise price, set by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The amounts shown are not intended to forecast future appreciation in the price of
our Class A Common Stock.

(6) Mr. Ciaccia’s employment with the Company terminated on August 28, 2003, when the Company sold its wireless local area networking operations to
GlobespanVirata, Inc., at which time he became an employee of GlobespanVirata, Inc.

The following sets forth information regarding the number and value of options held by the executive officers named in the
Summary Compensation Table during fiscal year 2003:

Aggregated Option/SAR Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year End Option/SAR Values

Number of Securities Net Value of Unexercised
Underlying Unexercised In-the-Money Options

Shares Acquired Value Options at Year End at Year End(1)

on Exercise (#) Realized ($) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable

Gregory L. Williams — $ — 442,892 572,250 $1,147,816 $2,440,000
Richard M. Beyer 3,082 $ 29,259 1,225,802 1,111,208 $ 33,903 $3,537,781
Daniel J. Heneghan — $ — 193,529 353,634 $ 527,874 $1,323,928
Larry J. Ciaccia — $ — 404,834 — $1,382,580 $ —
Rick E. Furtney — $ — 136,500 307,634 $ 381,462 $1,169,091
Mohan R. Maheswaran 132,616 $1,144,545 159,303 228,404 $ 538,150 $ 736,723

(1) Reflects net pre-tax amounts determined by subtracting the exercise price from $24.65 per share, the fair market value of common stock at the end of fiscal year 2003.
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Number of Securities
Remaining Available

Number of Securities Weighted Average for Future Issuance
to Be Issued Upon Exercise Price Under Equity

Exercise of Outstanding of Outstanding Compensation Plans
Options, Warrants, Options, Warrants, (Excluding Securities

Plan Category (shares in thousands) and Rights (#) and Rights ($) Reflected in Column 1)

Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders:
SiCOM Dutch Converted Plan 4 $ 9.30 —
Elantec, Inc. 1994 Equity Incentive Plan 88 $ 1.44 —
Elantec 1995 Directors Stock Option Plan — $ — —
Elantec 1995 Equity Incentive Plan 5,045 $19.38 —
Elantec 2001 Equity Incentive Plan 1,347 $24.11 —
1999 Equity Compensation Plan 11,405 $23.76 4,468
No Wires Needed B.V. Stock Option Plan — $ — —

Equity compensation plans not approved by shareholders None

Total 17,889 4,468
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures 
About Market Risk

We, in the normal course of doing business, are exposed to
the risks associated with foreign currency exchange rates and
changes in interest rates. We employ established policies and
procedures governing the use of financial instruments,
entered into for purposes other than trading purposes, to
manage our exposure to these risks.

At January 4, 2004, we had open foreign exchange 
contracts with a notional amount of $10.9 million, which was to
hedge forecasted foreign cash flow commitments up to six
months. As hedges on forecasted foreign cash flow commit-
ments do not qualify for deferral, gains and losses on changes
in the fair market value of the foreign exchange contracts are
recognized in income. Total net losses on foreign exchange
contracts for fiscal year 2004 were less than $0.1 million.
During fiscal year 2004, we purchased and sold $89.4 million of
foreign exchange forward contracts. The derivatives were also
recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value, which was 

nominal, at January 2, 2004. The table below summarizes our
foreign exchange contract activity over the past two years:

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3, January 2,
($ in millions) 2003 2004

Gain (loss) on foreign exchange contracts $ (1.0) $ —
Purchases and sales of foreign exchange contracts $93.9 $89.4
Notional amount of open contracts at year end $17.8 $10.9
Fair value of open contracts at year end $ 0.1 $ —

The decrease in the notional amounts of open foreign
exchange contracts at year end is due to the consolidation of
Elantec’s hedging process into one corporate program.

Our hedging activities provide only limited protection
against currency exchange risks. Factors that could impact the
effectiveness of our hedging programs include accuracy of
sales estimates, volatility of currency markets and the cost and
availability of hedging instruments. A 10% adverse change in
currency exchange rates for our foreign currency derivatives
held at January 2, 2004 would have an impact of approxi-
mately $0.2 million on the fair values of these instruments. This
qualification of exposure to the market risk associated with for-
eign exchange financial instruments does not take into
account the offsetting impact of changes in the fair values of
foreign denominated assets, liabilities and firm commitments.



Our Class A Common Stock has been traded on the Nasdaq
Stock Market’s National Market since February 25, 2000 under
the symbol “ISIL.” Prior to that time, there was no public
market for our common stock, and there is currently no public
market for our Class B Common Stock which has all been
converted to Class A. The following table sets forth, for the
periods indicated, the high and low closing prices per share of
our Class A Common Stock as reported in Nasdaq Stock
Market trading.

High Low

First quarter of 2002 
(from December 29, 2001 to March 29, 2002) $ 37.21 $ 25.81

Second quarter of 2002 
(from March 30, 2002 to June 28, 2002) $ 31.43 $ 19.00

Third quarter of 2002 
(from June 29, 2002 to October 4, 2002) $ 22.59 $ 11.77

Fourth quarter of 2002 
(from October 5, 2002 to January 3, 2003) $ 19.86 $ 11.25

First quarter of 2003 
(from January 4, 2003 to April 4, 2003) $16.68 $13.87

Second quarter of 2003 
(from April 5, 2003 to July 4, 2003) $27.22 $14.32

Third quarter of 2003 
(from July 5, 2003 to October 3, 2003) $29.91 $22.93

Fourth quarter of 2003 
(from October 4, 2003 to January 2, 2004) $28.96 $23.30

Holders

On March 8, 2004, the last reported sale price for our Class A
Common Stock was $22.93 per share. As of March 8, 2004, there
were about 300 record holders of our Class A Common Stock.

Dividends

In September 2003, our Board of Directors declared our first
common stock dividend, of $0.03 per share, which was paid on
November 24, 2003 to stockholders of record as of November 3,
2003. Our dividend policy is impacted by, among other items,
our views on potential future capital requirements relating to
research and development, creation and expansion of sales
distribution channels, investments and acquisitions, share
dilution management, legal risks, liquidity, and profitability.
Any determination to declare and pay dividends will be made
by our Board of Directors in light of these and other factors
the Board of Directors deems relevant.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not sell unregistered securities during fiscal year 2003.
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January 3, January 2,
($ in thousands, except share amounts) 2003 2004

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 542,766 $ 731,782
Held-to-maturity investments 80,836 87,751
Trade receivables, less allowances for collection loss 

($1,107 as of January 3, 2003 and $1,090 as of January 2, 2004) 93,894 82,611
Inventories 61,001 83,631
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 8,605 10,468
Assets held for sale 251,941 —
Deferred income taxes 29,402 39,843

Total Current Assets 1,068,445 1,036,086
Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment, less accumulated depreciation 143,937 153,410
Goodwill, less accumulated amortization 1,060,310 1,059,121
Other intangibles, less accumulated amortization 51,372 31,784
Held-to-maturity investments — 144,503
Other long-term investments 21,697 12,227
Deferred income taxes 16,674 9,554
Related party notes 1,000 499
Other 6,046 7,561

Total Non-Current Assets 1,301,036 1,418,659

Total Assets $2,369,481 $2,454,745

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities

Trade payables $ 31,900 $ 16,544
Related party payables 3,703 4,260
Retirement plan accruals 9,220 3,684
Accrued compensation 17,573 22,398
Accrued interest and sundry taxes 2,336 4,142
Deferred margin 12,129 12,105
Restructuring and exit costs 15,606 5,770
Litigation accruals 7,250 19,149
Other accrued items 16,564 20,881
Sales reserves 8,519 9,739
Liabilities held for sale 15,706 —
Income taxes payable 26,304 83,956

Total Current Liabilities 166,810 202,628
Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding — —
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 25,000 authorized, 

no shares issued or outstanding — —
Class A Common Stock, $.01 par value, voting, convertible; 300,000,000 shares authorized, 

129,140,657 shares outstanding at January 3, 2003, and 139,331,417 shares 
outstanding at January 2, 2004 1,290 1,393

Class B Common Stock, $.01 par value, non-voting, convertible; 300,000,000 shares authorized, 
7,786,719 shares outstanding at January 3, 2003, and no shares outstanding at January 2, 2004 78 —

Additional paid-in capital 2,228,925 2,246,402
Retained earnings (deficit) (780) 40,898
Unearned compensation (20,104) (8,956)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (3,116) 2,378
Treasury shares, at cost; 225,000 shares at January 3, 2003 and 1,157,100 shares at January 2, 2004 (3,622) (29,998)

Total Shareholders’ Equity 2,202,671 2,252,117

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $2,369,481 $2,454,745

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
($ in thousands, except per share amounts) 2001 2003 2004

Revenue
Product sales $398,542 $419,559 $507,684

Costs and expenses
Cost of product sales(a) 217,842 200,142 221,757
Research and development(b) 66,708 77,943 91,267
Selling, general and administrative(b) 75,079 89,598 88,274
Amortization of intangibles 7,357 6,783 6,298
Amortization of unearned compensation — 12,510 10,212
In-process research and development — 53,816 —
Impairment of long-lived assets 7,583 5,909 12,576
Restructuring 22,662 4,744 4,887

Operating income (loss) 1,311 (31,886) 72,413
Interest income, net 18,610 11,268 8,958
Loss on extinguishment of debt 19,733 — —
Gain (loss) on investments (8,242) 1,264 (3,443)
Gain on sale of certain operations 168,437 — 1,428

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 160,383 (19,354) 79,356
Income taxes from continuing operations 64,430 3,942 20,899

Income (loss) from continuing operations 95,953 (23,296) 58,457
Discontinued operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income taxes 
(including gain from disposal of $61,411 during fiscal year 2003) (65,641) 33,300 19,983

Income taxes (benefit) from discontinued operations (9,577) 14,974 32,603

Income (loss) from discontinued operations (56,064) 18,326 (12,620)

Net income (loss) $ 39,889 $ (4,970) $ 45,837

Basic income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.91 $ (0.19) $ 0.42
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.53) 0.15 (0.09)

Net income (loss) $ 0.38 $ (0.04) $ 0.33

Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.88 $ (0.19) $ 0.41
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.51) 0.15 (0.09)

Net income (loss) $ 0.37 $ (0.04) $ 0.32

Weighted average common shares outstanding (in millions):
Basic 105.7 125.6 137.3

Diluted 108.9 125.6 141.3

(a) Cost of product sales includes the following:

Unearned compensation $ — $ 1,992 $ 1,768

(b) Unearned compensation is excluded from the following:

Research and development $ — $ 5,724 $ 3,864
Selling, general and administrative — 6,786 6,348

$ — $ 12,510 $ 10,212

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
($ in thousands and net of associated tax effects) 2001 2003 2004

Net income (loss) $39,889 $(4,970) $45,837
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Currency translation adjustments (366) 614 1,978
Realization of unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities — — (583)
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 1,676 (3,367) 4,099

Comprehensive income (loss) $41,199 $(7,723) $51,331

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
($ in thousands) 2001 2003 2004

Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations $ 95,953 $ (23,296) $ 58,457
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 32,759 46,471 49,783
Provisions for inventory obsolescence 7,835 1,870 3,274
Write-off of in-process research and development — 53,816 —
Restructuring and impairments 38,488 10,653 30,463
Gain on sale of certain operations (168,437) — (1,428)
Gain on sale of certain investments — (1,264) (9,557)
Deferred income taxes (31,451) 3,920 (825)

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations (56,064) 18,326 (12,620)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Gain on sale of Wireless Networking product group — — (61,411)
Other adjustments 58,848 12,208 36,783

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables 68,801 (22,911) 11,284
Inventories (3,464) 6,225 (25,903)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,463 3,702 2,849
Trade payables and accrued liabilities (45,957) 2,391 (33,301)
Income taxes 27,096 2,699 69,044
Other (1,599) 5,319 (1,675)
Net assets held for sale 3,404 (18,729) (44,100)

Net cash provided by operating activities 28,675 101,400 71,117
Investing Activities:

Net change in short-term investments (47,334) (33,502) (6,915)
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities — — (224,505)
Held-to-maturity securities called by issuer — — 80,001
Proceeds from sale of Wireless Networking product group, net — — 237,513
Proceeds from sale of certain operations 338,016 — —
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments — 5,264 126,661
Cash paid for acquired businesses — (24,026) (3,116)
Purchase of other long-term investments (13,000) — —
Property, plant and equipment for discontinued operations (1,490) (6,386) (3,678)
Property, plant and equipment (39,142) (46,606) (58,809)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 237,050 (105,256) 147,152
Financing Activities:

Proceeds from exercise of stock plans 10,104 9,378 25,285
Dividends paid — — (4,159)
Payments of borrowing (61,545) — —
Repurchase of treasury shares (11,933) (18,565) (51,582)

Net cash used in financing activities (63,374) (9,187) (30,456)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (829) 1,690 1,203

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 201,522 (11,353) 189,016
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 352,597 554,119 542,766

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $ 554,119 $ 542,766 $ 731,782

Supplemental Disclosures—Non-Cash Activities:
Additional paid-in capital from tax benefit on exercise on non-qualified stock options $ 4,042 $ 948 $ 4,890

Stock issued in acquisition of Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. $ — $1,180,358 $ —

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Accumulated
Additional Retained Other

Common Stock Paid-In Earnings Unearned Comprehensive Treasury
($ in thousands) Class A Class B Capital (Deficit) Compensation Income (Loss) Stock Total

Balance at December 29, 2000 $ 680 $ 372 $ 1,051,213 $(35,699) $ (3,857) $(1,673) $ — $ 1,011,036
Net income — — — 39,889 — — — 39,889
Shares issued under Stock Option Plan, 

net of taxes 6 — 10,076 — — — — 10,082
Shares issued under Employee Stock 

Purchase Plan 2 — 4,060 — — — — 4,062
Shares issued on exercise of warrants 9 — (8) — — — — 1
Sterling Holding Co., LLC share exchange 209 (209) — — — — — —
Amortization of unearned compensation — — — — 2,801 — — 2,801
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities — — — — — 1,676 — 1,676
Foreign currency translation — — — — — (366) — (366)
Shares repurchased — — — — — — (11,933) (11,933)

Balance at December 28, 2001 906 163 1,065,341 4,190 (1,056) (363) (11,933) 1,057,248
Net loss — — — (4,970) — — — (4,970)
Shares issued under Stock Option Plan, 

net of taxes 13 — 5,481 — — — — 5,494
Shares issued under Employee Stock 

Purchase Plan 3 — 4,904 — — — — 4,907
Sterling Holding Co., LLC share exchange 85 (85) — — — — — —
Amortization of unearned compensation — — — — 15,302 — — 15,302
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities — — — — — (3,367) — (3,367)
Foreign currency translation — — — — — 614 — 614
Shares issued in merger with Elantec, Inc. 296 — 1,180,062 — — — — 1,180,358
Options issued in merger with Elantec, Inc. — — — — (34,350) — — (34,350)
Shares retired (13) — (26,863) — — — 26,876 —
Shares repurchased — — — — — — (18,565) (18,565)

Balance at January 3, 2003 1,290 78 2,228,925 (780) (20,104) (3,116) (3,622) 2,202,671
Net income — — — 45,837 — — — 45,837
Dividends paid — — — (4,159) — — — (4,159)
Shares issued under Stock Option Plan, 

net of taxes 23 — 25,154 — — — — 25,177
Shares issued under Employee Stock 

Purchase Plan 5 — 4,994 — — — — 4,999
Sterling Holding Co., LLC share exchange 78 (78) — — — — — —
Issuance of deferred stock units — — 2,145 — (2,145) — — —
Amortization of unearned compensation — — — — 12,264 — — 12,264
Forfeiture of unvested Elantec options — — (1,029) — 1,029 — — —
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities — — — — — 4,099 — 4,099
Realized gain on available-for-sale securities — — — — — (583) — (583)
Foreign currency translation — — — — — 1,978 — 1,978
Proceeds from warrant exercises 11 — (11) — — — — —
Acceleration of option vesting period — — 11,417 — — — — 11,417
Shares retired (14) — (25,193) — — — 25,207 —
Shares repurchased — — — — — — (51,583) (51,583)

Balance at January 2, 2004 $1,393 $ — $2,246,402 $40,898 $ (8,956) $2,378 $(29,998) $2,252,117

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Note A—Organization and Basis of Presentation

Organization
Intersil Corporation (“Intersil” or the “Company”) is a global
designer and manufacturer of high performance analog inte-
grated circuits. Our portfolio addresses some of the fastest
growing applications within four attractive end markets: high-
end consumer, computing, communications and industrial.
The Company’s high-end consumer products include its opti-
cal storage and video display products, its handheld power
management products, and certain standard analog drivers.
These products target high growth applications such as DVD
recorders for the home market, liquid crystal display (“LCD”)
televisions, smart phones and digital still cameras. The
Company’s computing category includes desktop, server and
notebook power management, including core power devices
and other peripheral applications, such as graphics, advanced
configuration power interface (“ACPI”) control and double
data rate (“DDR”) memory. The Company’s communications
group is made up of our line drivers, broadband and hot plug
power management products and high speed converters tar-
geted to applications in markets such as DSL, home gateway,
space and VOIP. Communications accounted for 24% of the
Company’s sales in fiscal year 2003. The Company’s industrial
products include its Elantec family of operational amplifiers,
bridge driver power management products, interface and ana-
log switches and multiplexers, and other standard analog
products. These products target end markets including med-
ical imaging, energy management and factory automation.
Industrial products represented 28% of the Company’s fiscal
year 2003 sales.

Basis of Presentation
The transactions discussed below significantly affect the com-
parability of the results of operations between the fiscal periods
presented within the Consolidated Financial Statements.

On March 16, 2001, the Company sold the assets of its
Discrete Power products group to Fairchild Semiconductor
Corporation (“Fairchild”). The Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
December 28, 2001, has been reduced by the assets purchased
and liabilities assumed by Fairchild.

On May 14, 2002, the Company merged with Elantec
Semiconductor, Inc. (“Elantec”) by using Intersil Class A
common stock and cash to purchase 100% of the outstanding
common stock of the Milpitas, California-based company.
The merger was accounted for using the purchase method
of accounting and, accordingly, the results of operations 
of Elantec have been included in the accompanying Con-
solidated Financial Statements since the merger date.

On August 28, 2003, the Company sold its Wireless
Networking product group to GlobespanVirata, Inc.
(“GlobespanVirata”). The Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
January 2, 2004 has been reduced by the assets purchased

and liabilities assumed by GlobespanVirata. Furthermore, the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of January 3, 2003 has been
reclassified to report Wireless Networking assets and liabilities
held for sale by the Company at that time. Additionally, in
accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS 144”), “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company
has not included the results of operations of its Wireless
Networking product group in the results from continuing opera-
tions. The results of operations for this product group have been
reflected as discontinued operations in all years presented.

The Company’s 2002 fiscal year contains 53 weeks. The
2001 and 2003 fiscal years contain the standard 52 weeks.

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Accounts denominated in non-U.S. currencies have been
remeasured using the U.S. dollar as the functional currency.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform
to current year classifications. This includes reclassifications for
discontinued operations in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS 144”),
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets.” Certain sales-related liabilities, $5.8 million of which
had been previously classified as “other accrued items” as of
January 3, 2003, have been reclassified into “sales reserves.”
Additionally, certain income tax related liabilities, $1.9 million
of which had been previously classified as “trade payables” as
of January 3, 2003, have been reclassified into “income taxes
payable.” Due to the adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 145 (“SFAS 145”), “Rescission of
FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections,” the Company
reclassified $19.7 million in charges related to the early extin-
guishment of debt in the Consolidated Statement of Operations
for fiscal year 2001.

Note B—Significant Accounting Policies

Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid debt securi-
ties with insignificant interest rate risk and maturities of three
months or less.

General Investment Information
The Company continually monitors its positions with, and the
credit quality of, the financial institutions that are counter-
parties to its financial instruments, and does not anticipate
nonperformance by the counterparties. The Company would not
realize a material loss as of January 2, 2004 in the event of non-
performance by any one counterparty. The Company enters
into transactions only with financial institution counterparties
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that have a long-term debt rating of no less than AA by
Standard & Poor’s or Aa by Moody’s. For short-term debt (a
maturity date less that 365 days) the issuer must have no less
than an A1 Standard & Poor’s and a P1 Moody’s credit rating.
In addition, the Company limits the amount of investment
credit exposure with any one institution. At January 2, 2004,
the Company did not require and was not required to collater-
alize any of its financial instrument obligations.

Interest paid in fiscal year 2001 was $4.4 million. Due to
the elimination of all of outstanding long-term debt in March
2001 (see Note V), the Company has not paid any appreciable
amount of interest during fiscal years 2002 and 2003. Interest
income includes interest on cash, cash equivalents, and held-to-
maturity investments net of associated bank fees and charges.

Current Held-to-Maturity Investments
Investments identified as “held-to-maturity” in the current
section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets are income-
yielding debt securities with maturities of less than one year
but greater than three months that can be readily converted
into cash. Examples of such debt securities include commercial
paper, corporate bonds, corporate notes and federal, state,
county and municipal government bonds. In accordance
with Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115
(“SFAS 115”), “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities,” these securities are classified as held-to-
maturity securities as the Company has the positive intent and
ability to hold until maturity. Securities in the “held-to-maturity”
classification are carried at amortized cost. Accordingly,
unrealized gains and losses are not reported in the financial
statements until realized or until a decline is deemed to be
other-than-temporary. Held-to-maturity investments with maturi-
ties beyond one year are contained in the balance sheet line item
“Held-to-Maturity Investments” within the non-current section.
The Company’s portfolios of current held-to-maturity investments
consisted of the following as of the dates set forth below:

January 3, 2003
Amortized Maturity

Cost Range
Type of Security ($ in millions) (in years)

U.S. Treasury and government debt $ 62.4 < 1
State & municipality issued debt 18.4 < 1

Total $ 80.8

January 2, 2004
Amortized Maturity

Cost Range
Type of Security ($ in millions) (in years)

U.S. Treasury and government debt $69.7 < 1
State & municipality issued debt 11.0 < 1
Corporate issued debt 7.1 < 1

Total $87.8

As of January 3, 2003, the fair market value of these secu-
rities was approximately $80.7 million, thus resulting in an
unrecognized loss of $0.1 million. The fair market value of these
securities as of January 2, 2004 was $88.6 million; thus the
Company had $0.8 million of unrecognized gains at that time.

Non-Current Held-to-Maturity Investments
During 2003, the Company began to invest in debt securities
with maturities greater than one year. In accordance with
SFAS 115, these debt securities are classified as “held-to-
maturity” securities, since the Company has the positive intent
and ability to hold the debt securities until maturity. Securities
in this classification are carried at amortized cost. Accordingly,
unrealized gains and losses are not reported in the financial
statements until realized or until a decline is deemed to be
other-than-temporary. Since the maturities for these debt
securities range from 1 to 3 years, such securities are classified
in the non-current section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The Company’s portfolio of non-current held-to-maturity invest-
ments included the following as of the end of fiscal year 2003:

January 2, 2004
Amortized Maturity

Cost Range
Type of Security ($ in millions) (in years)

U.S. Treasury and government debt $144.5 1–3

Total $144.5

The fair market value of these securities as of January 2,
2004 was $144.1 million; thus the Company had $0.4 million of
unrecognized losses at that time.

Available-for-Sale Investments
In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 115, investments
identified as available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value
as established by readily determinable market prices as of
each balance sheet date. The investments of available-for-sale
securities are held within the “Other Long-Term Investments”
line item in the non-current section of the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Temporary gains and losses are classified as compo-
nents of comprehensive income, while other-than-temporary
losses and permanent gains and losses are classified as
components of net income (loss). Other-than-temporary losses
are recognized when either the quoted market price was less
than the carrying value for two consecutive quarters or other
qualitative indicators of impairment arise.

Available-for-sale securities consist exclusively of shares of
ChipPAC, Inc. (“ChipPAC”) common stock as of each balance
sheet date. On August 8, 2000, ChipPAC completed its initial
public offering and Intersil’s investment in ChipPAC preferred
stock was converted to an investment in ChipPAC common
stock. There are no restrictions on the Company’s ability to sell
this common stock. During fiscal year 2001, the Company real-
ized a loss from an other-than-temporary decline in value of
$8.2 million related to its investment in ChipPAC common
stock. In arriving at this decision, management considered var-
ious factors including the fact that ChipPAC’s stock price was
less than its carrying value during two consecutive quarters.
The Company also considered the overall macroeconomic
condition of the semiconductor industry at the time. Due to
changes in the market prices of the ChipPAC common stock,
an unrealized loss in the amount of $6.6 million ($3.4 million
net of tax benefit) has been charged to other comprehensive
loss for fiscal year 2002, while unrealized gains of $4.0 million
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($1.7 million after tax) and $6.3 million ($4.1 million after tax)
were included in other comprehensive income for fiscal years
2001 and 2003, respectively. During fiscal year 2003, Intersil sold
approximately one-third of its holdings in ChipPAC for a realized
gain of $1.8 million. Proceeds from the sale were $4.5 million.
As a result of this sale, we released $0.6 million of unrealized
gains from the other comprehensive income (loss) line item of
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The carrying value of these
securities was $5.9 million and $7.7 million as of January 3, 2003
and January 2, 2004, respectively. The cumulative amount of
unrealized gains (losses) contained within the other comprehen-
sive income (loss) portion of the equity section was $(1.7) million
and $1.8 million at January 3, 2003 and January 2, 2004, respec-
tively. The Company held 998,816 shares, or approximately 1%
of total ChipPAC shares outstanding, at January 2, 2004.

Trading Investments
Trading investments are stated at fair value, with gains or
losses resulting from changes in fair value recognized currently
in earnings. The Company elects to classify as “trading” assets
a portion of its marketable equity securities, which are con-
tained in the “Other Long-Term Investments” line item in the
non-current section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
These investments consist exclusively of a marketable equity
portfolio held to generate returns that seek to offset changes
in liabilities related to certain deferred compensation arrange-
ments. Gains or losses from changes in the fair value of these
equity securities are offset by losses or gains on the related
liabilities and thus have no net impact on earnings. The
Company’s portfolios of trading investments included the
following securities as of the dates set forth below:

January 3, 2003
Fair Value Net Unrealized

Type of Security ($ in millions) Gains (Losses)

Mutual fund holdings offsetting 
deferred compensation $ 3.1 $(0.5)

Total trading investments $ 3.1 $(0.5)

January 2, 2004
Fair Value Net Unrealized

Type of Security ($ in millions) Gains (Losses)

Mutual fund holdings offsetting 
deferred compensation $4.5 $ 0.1

Total trading investments $4.5 $ 0.1

Cost Method Investments
All investments that are not accounted for as “held-to-maturity,”
“available-for-sale” or “trading” are accounted for under the
cost method. Under the cost method, investments are held at
historical cost, less impairments, as there are no readily deter-
minable market values. Furthermore, the Company holds less
than 20% ownership of the cost method investments and
cannot exercise significant influence over the investee. These
investments are reviewed at least quarterly for impairment
indicators such as bankruptcy or competitive problems.
Impairments are determined using several analytical tech-
niques such as discounted cash flow analysis, investment

reviews with product groups and management’s evaluation of
the Company. Cost method investments are contained in the
“Other Long-Term Investments” line item in the non-current
section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company
held $13.0 million of such investments at January 3, 2003. The
Company held no such investments at January 2, 2004.

Other Financial Instruments and Derivatives
The Company issues letters of credit during the ordinary
course of business through major financial institutions as
required by certain vendor contracts. The Company had out-
standing letters of credit totaling $3.7 million and $4.0 million
at January 3, 2003 and January 2, 2004, respectively.

The Company’s primary objective for holding derivative
financial instruments is to manage currency, interest rate, and
some equity market risks. The Company’s derivative instru-
ments are recorded at fair value and are included in other
current assets. The Company’s accounting policies for these
instruments are based on whether they meet the Company’s
criteria for designation as hedging transactions, either as cash
flow or fair value hedges. A hedge of the exposure to variability
in the cash flows of an asset or a liability, or of a forecasted
transaction, is referred to as a cash flow hedge. A hedge of the
exposure to changes in fair value of an asset or a liability, or of
an unrecognized firm commitment, is referred to as a fair value
hedge. The criteria for designating a derivative as a hedge
include the instrument’s effectiveness in risk reduction and, in
most cases, a one-to-one matching of the derivative instrument
to its underlying transaction. Gains and losses on derivatives
that are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes
are recognized currently in earnings, and generally offset
changes in the values of related assets, liabilities or debt.
Intersil uses foreign exchange contracts to hedge forecasted
foreign cash flow commitments up to six months. Hedges on
forecasted foreign cash flow commitments do not qualify for
deferral, as the hedges are not related to a specific, identifi-
able transaction. Therefore, gains and losses on changes in
the fair market value of the foreign exchange contracts are
recognized in cost of product sales. Premiums paid for option
contracts that are not exercised are written off at the time of
expiration. Gains and losses on foreign exchange contracts
are included within cost of product sales within the statements
of operations.

Intersil uses foreign exchange contracts to hedge antici-
pated foreign cash flow commitments up to six months. Total
net gains (losses) on foreign exchange contracts were $0.9 mil-
lion, $(1.0) million and nominal for fiscal year 2001, fiscal year
2002 and fiscal year 2003, respectively. Realized gains and
losses from hedges are classified in the statements of opera-
tions consistent with the accounting treatment of the items
being hedged. Open foreign exchange contracts had fair
values of $17.8 million and $10.9 million at January 3, 2003
and January 2, 2004, respectively.

All such contracts are used to hedge anticipated foreign
cash flow commitments. Intersil purchased and sold foreign
exchange forward and put option contracts with a notional
value of $93.9 million and $89.4 million during fiscal years 2002
and 2003, respectively.
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Total open foreign exchange contracts and options at
January 3, 2003 and January 2, 2004 are described in the
tables below:

January 3, 2003
Options to Sell Foreign Currencies

Contract Amount 

Foreign
Currency U.S. Maturities

Currency (in thousands) (in months)

Euro 6,500 $ 6,274 1–6
Japanese Yen 900,000 7,344 1–6

Commitments to Sell Foreign Currencies
Contract Amount

Foreign
Currency U.S. Maturities

Currency (in thousands) (in months)

Japanese Yen 506,872 $ 4,182 1–2

January 2, 2004
Options to Sell Foreign Currencies

Contract Amount

Foreign
Currency U.S. Maturities

Currency (in thousands) (in months)

Japanese Yen 10,939 $1,250 1–5

Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are recorded at net realizable value or the
amount that we expect to collect on our gross customer trade
receivables. The Company establishes a reserve of approxi-
mately 1% of gross trade receivables in addition to specific
reserves for receivables with known collection problems due
to circumstances such as bankruptcy or customer disputes.
Collection problems are identified using an aging of receiv-
ables analysis based on invoice due dates. Items that are
deemed uncollectible are written off against the allowance for
collection losses, the provision for which is made through cost
of product sales. Credit limits, ongoing evaluation and trade
receivable monitoring procedures are utilized to minimize the
risk of credit loss. Credit is extended based on an evaluation of
the customer’s financial condition and collateral is generally
not required. Expected losses are provided for currently and
actual losses have been within management’s expectations.
Intersil has not charged interest on overdue receivables during
the time periods presented.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of standard cost, which
approximates actual cost, determined by the First-In-First-Out
(“FIFO”) method, or market. All inventory adjustments estab-
lish a new cost basis and are considered permanent even in
instances where the costs are recoverable. Shipping and
handling costs are classified as a component of cost of product
sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Buildings, machinery and equipment are carried on the basis
of cost, less impairment charges, if any. The estimated useful
lives of buildings, which include leasehold improvements,

range between 5 and 50 years. The estimated useful lives of
machinery and equipment range between 3 and 10 years.
Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method using
the estimated useful life of the asset. Depreciation expense
from continuing operations was $25.7 million, $25.2 million
and $31.5 million for fiscal years 2001, 2002 and 2003, respec-
tively. The Company expenses all repairs and maintenance
costs that do not extend an asset’s useful life or increase an
asset’s capacity.

Advertising Expense
Advertising costs are expensed in the period incurred.
Advertising expense for continuing operations was $5.6 mil-
lion, $6.5 million and $6.6 million for fiscal year 2001, fiscal year
2002 and fiscal year 2003, respectively. There are no prepaid
advertising costs reflected in any time period presented.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized from sales to all customers, except
North American distributors, when a product is shipped. Sales
to international distributors are made under agreements,
which provide the international distributors price protection
on and rights to periodically exchange a percentage of
unsold inventory they hold. Accordingly, sales are reduced
for estimated returns from international distributors and 
estimated future price reductions of unsold inventory held by
international distributors.

Effective March 30, 2002, the Company began to recognize
revenue to North American distributors on a sell-through
basis. As such, the Company now recognizes sales to North
American distributors upon shipment to the end customer.
Formerly, the Company recognized revenue from North
American distributor sales upon shipment to the distributors.
The combination of the changes resulting from the merger
with Elantec, changes in the distributor mix and changes in
market pricing affect the estimability of customer returns. The
impact of this change resulted in a reduction in net income
and diluted earnings per share of $6.6 million and $0.05,
respectively, during fiscal year 2002. This change did not have
a material impact on the results of operations subsequent to
the adoption as the recognition of previously deferred revenue
offset the additional deferrals. Deferred margin on North
American distributor sales at January 3, 2003 and January 2,
2004 was $12.1 million and $12.1 million, respectively.

Research and Development
Research and development costs, consisting of the cost 
of designing, developing and testing new or significantly
enhanced products are expensed as incurred.

Retirement Benefits
Intersil provides retirement benefits to substantially all
employees primarily through a retirement plan to which both
the Company and its employees contribute. Contributions by
Intersil to the retirement plan are based on profits of the
Company and a dollar-for-dollar match of employees’ contri-
butions up to a certain predetermined percentage. Intersil
may make additional contributions to the fund at its discretion.
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The savings element of the retirement plan is a defined
contribution plan, which is qualified under Internal Revenue
Service Code Section 401(k). All employees of the Company may
elect to participate in the 401(k) retirement plan (“401(k) plan”).
Under the 401(k) plan, participating employees may defer a por-
tion of their pretax earnings up to certain limits prescribed by
the Internal Revenue Service. The Company provides matching
contributions under the provisions of the plan. Employees
fully vest in the Company’s matching contributions upon the
completion of five years of service.

Retirement benefits also include an unfunded limited
healthcare plan for U.S.-based retirees and employees on
long-term disability. Intersil accrues the estimated cost of
these medical benefits during an employee’s active service
life. Expenses related to this plan were $0.5 million, $0.7 mil-
lion and $1.9 million during fiscal year 2001, fiscal year 2002
and fiscal year 2003, respectively. The accrued liability related
to the unfunded limited healthcare plan was $3.1 million and
$0.8 million at January 3, 2003 and January 2, 2004, respec-
tively. During fiscal year 2003, the Company approved a
change to the retirement benefit plan whereby benefits will be

phased out by 2008. This resulted in the decrease in the
accrued liability during fiscal year 2003.

Retirement plans expense from continuing operations
was $7.0 million for fiscal year 2001, $7.3 million for fiscal year
2002 and $6.0 million for fiscal year 2003.

Stock-Based Compensation
The Company accounts for its stock-based award plans in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and FASB Interpre-
tation No. 44 “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving
Stock Compensation.” Compensation expense is recorded on
the date of the grant only if the current market price of the
underlying stock exceeds the exercise price. No such compen-
sation expense has been recorded to date. Had compensation
cost for the Company’s stock option plan been determined con-
sistent with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(“SFAS 123”), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the
Company would have reported net income of $20.7 million for
fiscal year 2001, a net loss of $48.1 million for fiscal year 2002
and a net loss of $13.4 million for fiscal year 2003.
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The following table reconciles net income (loss) as previously reported to the net income (loss) that would have been
reported had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plan been determined consistent with SFAS 123:

Year Ended

($ in millions, except per share information) December 28, 2001 January 3, 2003 January 2, 2004

Net income (loss), as reported $ 39.9 $ (5.0) $ 45.8
Add: Stock-based employee compensation included in reported net income 2.8 15.3 23.7
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined 

under fair value based method for all awards (22.0) (58.4) (82.9)

Net income (loss), pro forma $ 20.7 $(48.1) $(13.4)

Basic income (loss) per share, pro forma $ 0.20 $(0.38) $(0.10)

Diluted income (loss) per share, pro forma $ 0.19 $(0.38) $(0.10)

Basic income (loss) per share, as reported $ 0.38 $(0.04) $ 0.33

Diluted income (loss) per share, as reported $ 0.37 $(0.04) $ 0.32

The Company estimates the fair value of each option as
of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing model
with the following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
2001 2003 2004

Expected volatility 1.002 0.818 0.712–0.780
Dividend yield — — 0.50%
Risk-free interest rate 4.14%–5.40% 4.80% 2.84%–3.96%
Expected life, in years 7 7 7

Income Taxes
Intersil follows the liability method of accounting for income
taxes as set forth in Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards No. 109 (“SFAS 109”), “Accounting for Income Taxes.”
Current income taxes payable and deferred income taxes
resulting from temporary differences between the financial
statements and the tax basis of assets and liabilities are 
separately classified on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Asset Impairment
Intersil accounts for long-lived asset impairments under
SFAS 144. Consistent with prior guidance, SFAS 144 requires a
three-step approach for recognizing and measuring the
impairment of assets to be held and used. The Company
recognizes impairment losses on long-lived assets used in
operations when indicators of impairment are present and the
undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those
assets are less than the assets’ carrying amounts. The impair-
ment loss is measured by comparing the fair value of the
asset to its carrying amount. Fair value is estimated based on
discounted future cash flows. Assets to be sold are stated at the
lower of the asset’s carrying amount or fair value and depre-
ciation is no longer recognized. Prior to SFAS 144’s adoption
on December 29, 2001, Intersil accounted for impairments
under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121
(“SFAS 121”), “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.”



Intangibles
In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142 (“SFAS 142”), “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” which the Company adopted on
December 29, 2001. Under SFAS 142, goodwill and intangible
assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer amortized
but are subject to annual impairment tests. Other intangible
assets will continue to be amortized over their estimated use-
ful lives and evaluated for impairment under SFAS 144 when
indicators are present.

As required by SFAS 142, the Company ceased amortiz-
ing goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets
beginning December 29, 2001. Included in the above is
assembled workforce, which under SFAS 142, is defined as an
indefinite-lived asset. Any additional indefinite-lived assets
recorded as a result of future purchase transactions will not be
amortized but will be subject to the annual impairment tests
set forth in SFAS 142.

Pursuant to SFAS 142, the Company completed an initial
impairment review of its goodwill and intangible assets deemed
to have indefinite lives as of December 29, 2001 and found no
impairment. Beginning in 2002, the Company performs an
annual impairment review during the fourth quarter of each
year or more frequently if the Company believes indicators of
impairment exist.

Goodwill is tested under the two-step approach for
impairment at a level of reporting referred to as a reporting
unit. The Company has one segment with two reporting units.
The Company’s reporting units are the High Performance
Analog and the Elantec product groups as they are each
managed by a general manager.

The first step of the goodwill impairment test, used to
identify potential impairment, compares the fair value of each
reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If
the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount,
goodwill of the reporting unit is considered not impaired, thus
the second step of the impairment test is unnecessary. If the
carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the
second step of the impairment test shall be performed to
measure the amount of impairment loss, if any.

The second step of the goodwill impairment test, used to
measure the amount of impairment loss, compares the
implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carry-
ing amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of the
reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that
goodwill, an impairment loss shall be recognized in an amount
equal to that excess. The loss recognized cannot exceed the
carrying amount of the goodwill. After a goodwill impairment
loss is recognized, the adjusted carrying amount of goodwill
shall be its new accounting basis.

The following table presents the impact of SFAS 142 on
net income and net income per share had no amortization
been recorded for fiscal year 2001:

Year Ended
($ in millions, except for per share amounts) December 28, 2001

Net income—as reported $39.9
SFAS 142 adjustments 33.1
SFAS 142 tax effect (9.9)

Net income—adjusted $63.1

Adjusted basic earnings per share $0.60

Adjusted diluted earnings per share $0.58

Foreign Currency Translation
The functional currency for Intersil’s international subsidiaries
is predominately the local currency. Assets and liabilities are
translated at current rates of exchange, and income and
expense items are translated at the weighted average
exchange rate for the year. The resulting translation adjust-
ments are recorded as a separate component of shareholders’
equity. Aggregate cumulative translation gains/(losses) were
$(2.0) million, $(1.4) million and $0.6 million at December 28,
2001, January 3, 2003 and January 2, 2004, respectively.

Income (Loss) Per Share
Income (loss) per share is computed and presented in accord-
ance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128
(“SFAS 128”), “Earnings Per Share” and the Securities and
Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 98.

Use of Estimates
The statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
and require management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Restructuring
Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted Statement 
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146 (“SFAS 146”),
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” SFAS 146 addresses financial accounting and
reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities
and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 94-3,
“Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits
and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs
Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS 146 requires that a liability
for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recog-
nized when a liability is incurred rather than when an exit or
disposal plan is approved.
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Note C—Inventories

Inventories are summarized below:

($ in thousands) January 3, 2003 January 2, 2004

Finished products $15,744 $ 25,135
Work in process 63,141 77,074
Raw materials and supplies 3,588 4,711

82,473 106,920
Less inventory reserves 21,472 23,289

$61,001 $ 83,631

At January 3, 2003 and January 2, 2004, Intersil was
committed to purchase $23.3 million and $12.0 million, respec-
tively, of inventory from suppliers.

Note D—Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are summarized below:

($ in thousands) January 3, 2003 January 2, 2004

Land $ 2,024 $ 2,024
Buildings 49,098 49,828
Machinery and equipment 171,496 206,821

222,618 258,673
Less allowances for depreciation (78,681) (105,263)

$143,937 $ 153,410

Note E—Intangibles

Intangibles are summarized below:

($ in thousands) January 3, 2003 January 2, 2004

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets:
Goodwill $1,060,444 $1,056,364
Less accumulated amortization (134) (134)
Assembled workforce 6,106 6,106
Less accumulated amortization (3,215) (3,215)

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets:
Developed technology 56,330 35,200
Less accumulated amortization (14,470) (3,416)
Customer base 12,326 —
Less accumulated amortization (5,705) —

Total Intangibles $1,111,682 $1,090,905

Definite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their
useful lives, which are 9 to 11 years for developed technology
and 7 years for customer base. Amortization expense on

intangible assets from continuing operations was $7.4 million,
$6.8 million and $6.3 million for fiscal year 2001, fiscal year
2002, and fiscal year 2003, respectively. Expected amortization
expense for each of the next five years is $4.7 million per year.

The following table summarizes changes in Intersil’s
goodwill balances as required by SFAS 142:

Year Ended

January 3, January 2,
($ in thousands) 2003 2004

Goodwill balance at beginning of period $ 53 $1,060,310
Goodwill resulting from purchase of Elantec 1,060,257 (4,080)
Goodwill impaired during the year — —

$1,060,310 $1,056,230

The table above excludes goodwill balances reclassified
as assets held for sale. In August 2003, the Company divested
of $172.4 million of goodwill as part of the sale of the Wireless
Networking product group (Note S).

Note F—Income (Loss) Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and
diluted income (loss) per share:

Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
($ in thousands, except per share amounts) 2001 2003 2004

Numerator:
Net income (loss) $39,889 $(4,970) $45,837

Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings 

per share—weighted average 
common shares 105,740 125,591 137,291

Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 1,348 — 3,140
Deferred stock units — — 59
Warrants 1,856 — 777

Denominator for diluted 
earnings per share—adjusted 
weighted average shares 108,944 125,591 141,267

Basic income (loss) per share $ 0.38 $ (0.04) $ 0.33

Diluted income (loss) per share $ 0.37 $ (0.04) $ 0.32

The effect of 3,510 dilutive securities is not included in the
computations for fiscal year 2002, because to do so would be
antidilutive.
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Note G—Gain (Loss) From Investments

The table below details our gain/(loss) from investments for all periods presented:

Year Ended

($ in millions) December 28, 2001 January 3, 2003 January 2, 2004

Other-than-temporary loss on available-for-sale securities (see Note B) $(8.2) $ — $ —
Gain from sale of ChipPAC available-for-sale securities (see Note B) — — 1.8
Gain from sale of Powersmart, Inc. cost method investment (see below) — 1.3 0.6
Gain from sale of GlobespanVirata available-for-sale securities (see below) — — 7.2
Loss from write-down of cost method investment (see below) — — (13.0)

Total gain (loss) from investments $(8.2) $1.3 $ (3.4)



During fiscal year 2002, the Company recorded a gain of
$1.3 million ($0.8 million after tax) from the sale of its invest-
ment in PowerSmart, Inc. The gain was calculated as the
excess of the proceeds from disposition of the investment
over its carrying value.

During fiscal year 2003, the Company recorded a write-
down of $13.0 million related to an investment, which is
accounted for under the cost method of accounting as the
Company holds less than 20% ownership and can not exercise
significant influence over the investee. The impairment reflects
the excess of the investment’s carrying value over the estimated
undiscounted cash flows resulting from the eventual disposal
of the securities.

During fiscal year 2003, the Company recorded a gain 
of $0.6 million ($0.4 million after tax) from the release of 
previously escrowed funds resulting from the sale of its
investment in PowerSmart, Inc. in June 2002. The entire
escrow receipt was recorded as a gain as the investment had
no carrying value.

During fiscal year 2003, the Company recognized a $7.2 mil-
lion gain ($4.7 million after tax) from the sale of 15,462,185
shares of GlobespanVirata common stock. The gain was calcu-
lated as the net proceeds from the sale less the carrying value of
the stock, which was determined as the fair market value
during the five-day period including the date of the transac-
tion and the two days preceding and succeeding this date. The
GlobespanVirata common stock represented a portion of the
consideration paid by GlobespanVirata to the Company for its
Wireless Networking product group (see Note S). The
GlobespanVirata common stock was categorized as available-
for-sale. Since it was received and sold within one quarter, no
unrealized gains or losses were recorded.

Note H—Sale of Discrete Power Product Group

On March 16, 2001, the Company sold the assets of its
Discrete Power product group to Fairchild Semiconductor
International, Inc. (“Fairchild”) for $338.0 million in cash and
the assumption by Fairchild of certain liabilities of the product
group. As a result of the sale, the Company recognized a gain
of $168.4 million ($81.8 million after tax), which was net of the
assets purchased and liabilities assumed by Fairchild, transac-
tion fees and other exit costs associated with the sale. The exit
costs included employee termination benefits to be incurred
within one year from the sale date, as well as information tech-
nology costs required to transfer software license fees and to
create system modifications necessary to support the business
transition activity. Intersil also closed three foreign sales offices
as a result of the sale. Also, included within the calculation of
the gain was the write-off of $14.8 million of intangible assets
that were related to the formation of the Company from the
assets of Harris Corporation’s Semiconductor Business in
August of 1999. The assets represent the developed technol-
ogy, customer base and assembled workforce for the Discrete
Power product group, which were derived from the original
valuation completed at the time of the acquisition.

At the date of the sale, Fairchild made offers of employ-
ment to a portion of the Intersil employees who supported the

Discrete Power products group. Approximately 207 employees
who were not offered jobs with Fairchild or who did not accept
an employment offer were notified that their employment
would be terminated and of the specifics of their severance
benefits. Those positions included manufacturing, selling and
general and administrative employees; 165 of the employees
were located in the United States, 37 in Europe and 5 in Asia.
As of January 2, 2004, all of the affected employees have been
terminated. During fiscal year 2003, the Company recorded
an additional $1.4 million ($0.9 million after tax) gain from
the reduction of accrued exit costs due to favorable contract
renegotiations with software vendors.

Note I—Merger With Elantec

On May 14, 2002, following receipt of approval of the share-
holders of Intersil and Elantec, Intersil merged with Elantec by
using Intersil Class A common stock, stock options and cash to
purchase 100% of the outstanding common stock of the
Milpitas, California-based company. The merger was
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and,
accordingly, the results of operations of Elantec have been
included in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements since the merger date.

Pursuant to the merger, each outstanding share of Elantec
common stock was converted into 1.24 shares of Intersil Class A
common stock and $8.00 cash, without interest. The source of
funds for the cash portion of the purchase price was working
capital. Under the terms of the merger agreement, Intersil
issued 29,587,331 shares of its Class A common stock for 100%
of Elantec’s outstanding common stock. The estimated value
of Intersil’s Class A common stock was $32.42 per share based
on the average closing price of Intersil’s Class A common stock
during the five-day period including March 11, 2002 (the first
trading day following the announcement of the signing of the
merger agreement) and the two trading days preceding and
succeeding this date.

The Company also reserved 8,969,763 shares of its Class A
common stock in exchange for Elantec’s outstanding stock
options. Each outstanding option to purchase shares of Elantec
common stock was converted into an option to purchase
shares of the Company’s Class A common stock using an
exchange ratio of 1.54, which is equal to 1.24 plus the quotient
of $8.00 divided by the closing sales price of Intersil Class A
common stock as reported on the NASDAQ National Market
on the trading day immediately preceding the date of the
merger of $26.60. The Company estimated the fair value of
each option as of the merger date using the Black-Scholes
pricing model.

As a result of the merger, the Company incurred transac-
tion related fees of $21.1 million. The Company also incurred
costs of $7.7 million relating to efforts undertaken to exit
certain activities deployed by Elantec (see Note J). Additionally,
$34.3 million of the purchase price was allocated to future
periods in the form of unearned compensation, which resulted
from the intrinsic value of the aforementioned options. The
intrinsic value of each option was calculated as the excess of
the fair market value of one share of Intersil Class A common
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stock as determined using the average closing sales price of
Intersil Class A common stock on May 13, 2002 and May 14,
2002 of $28.41 over the option price. The unearned compensa-
tion costs will be recognized over the remaining vesting period
of the options as an operating expense. The table below sum-
marizes the components of the purchase price ($ in millions):

Common stock issued $ 959.2
Value of options issued 221.1
Cash paid 190.9
Transaction costs incurred 21.1
Exit costs incurred 7.7
Unearned compensation (34.3)

Total purchase price $1,365.7

Management performed an allocation of the total purchase
price of Elantec to certain of its individual assets and liabilities.
In-process research and development projects, tangible assets
and specific intangible assets were identified and valued. The
residual purchase price of $1,056.2 million has been recorded
as goodwill. In accordance with SFAS 142, goodwill will be
carried at cost and tested for impairment annually and when-
ever events indicate that impairment may have occurred.
Goodwill is not amortized under SFAS 142. The goodwill is
not deductible for tax purposes. The final purchase price
allocation is as follows ($ in millions):

Tangible current assets $ 231.7
Tangible long-term assets 17.4
Tangible liabilities (9.8)
Developed technology 12.4
Acquired in-process research and development 53.8
Goodwill 1,056.2
Deferred tax liability (4.7)
Tax benefit from exercise of vested options 8.7

Total purchase price $1,365.7

The total amount of goodwill recorded as part of the
original purchase accounting was reduced by approximately
$8.7 million for the income tax benefit recognized upon the
exercise of Intersil options issued to holders of vested Elantec
options on the date of the merger. The appraisal of the
acquired Elantec business identified $53.8 million of pur-
chased in-process research and development, which was
related to various products under development. The technology
had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no future
alternative uses. Accordingly, it was written off at the time of
acquisition. The remaining intangible balance, which consists
of developed technology, will be amortized over its estimated
useful life of nine years.

In valuing the in-process research and development, the
Company relied on present value calculations of income, an
analysis of project accomplishments and completion costs and
an assessment of overall contribution and project risk. The
present value was determined by discounting 2 to 8 years of
after tax cash flow projections depending on the individual
project. The Company used a discount rate of 13% based on
an approximation of the cost of capital. The percentage of
completion for the projects ranges from 10% to 90%, and the

total cost to complete all projects at the time of the acquisition
was approximately $38.4 million. The various project groupings,
the cost to complete the projects and the average percentage
complete within each grouping as of January 2, 2004 are
reported below ($ in millions):

Average Value
Number of Cost to Percent Assigned

Project Group Projects Complete Complete to Project

Optical Storage 61 $ 3.6 82% $13.8
Communications 7 0.7 70% 1.6
DC/DC Converters 26 5.9 46% 5.8
Amplifiers and 

Comparators 83 4.7 50% 18.6
Other Video 46 7.8 26% 10.2
TFT Buffers 17 1.3 62% 3.8

Total 240 $24.0 $53.8

Although these estimates were developed with the assis-
tance of an independent third-party, management is primarily
responsible for the valuation. These estimates are subject to
change given the uncertainties of the development process,
and no assurance can be given that deviations from these
estimates will not occur. The Company expects to continue
these development efforts and believe we have a reasonable
chance of successfully completing the research and develop-
ment programs. However, there is risk associated with the
completion of the projects, and there is no assurance that any
will meet either technological or commercial success.

Since the original purchase price allocation, the Company
recorded the following purchase price adjustments ($ in millions):

Increase to goodwill from valuation adjustments 
on assets and liabilities $ 3.1

Decrease to goodwill from forfeiture and tax effects 
of stock options (8.7)

Decrease to goodwill to record deferred tax asset 
related to NOL carryforwards (14.4)

Increase to goodwill from adjustments to restructuring costs 0.6
Decrease to goodwill from decreases in transaction costs (0.2)

Total change in purchase price allocation $(19.6)

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated results of
operations are presented as if the Elantec merger occurred on
December 30, 2000 and December 29, 2001, respectively:

(unaudited) (unaudited)
Year Ended Year Ended

($ in millions, except per share data) December 28, 2001 January 3, 2003

Product sales $454.9 $461.3
Net loss $ (39.5) $ (8.6)
Net loss per basic share $ (0.29) $ (0.07)

The pro forma results of operations include adjustments
to give effect to additional amortization related to the
increased value of acquired identified intangibles. Included in
the pro forma results above are certain infrequent events.
These events include the write-off of in-process research and
development costs ($53.8 million), which is included in fiscal
year 2001 and fiscal year 2002. Unusual costs during fiscal year
2001 include the impairment of long-lived assets ($7.6 million),
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the impairment of marketable securities ($8.2 million),
restructuring costs ($54.2 million) and a gain from the sale of
certain operations ($168.4 million). Included in fiscal year 2002
are the impairment of long-lived assets ($6.2 million) and
restructuring costs ($7.7 million). The unaudited pro forma
information is not necessarily indicative of the results that
would have occurred had the acquisition actually been made
at the beginning of the period presented or the future results
of the combined operations.

Note J—Restructuring Costs Related to the Exit of
Elantec’s Activities

Included in the purchase price of the Elantec merger (see
Note I) are $7.7 million in accrued costs arising out of the
Company’s plan to exit certain activities deployed by Elantec.
In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 95-3,
“Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase
Business Combination,” these costs were considered in the
purchase price allocation of the Elantec merger. This restructur-
ing plan includes employee termination costs, costs incurred
in the exit of Elantec’s fabrication facility in Milpitas, California,
and the elimination of certain Elantec sales and marketing
activities. Employee termination costs include involuntary sever-
ance payments and outplacement training. Costs to exit the
fabrication facility include lease payments on vacated facilities
and decommissioning costs required to exit the facility.
Decommissioning costs include items such as costs for remov-
ing and disposing of air handlers, exhausts, structural steel,
process cooling loops, gas piping and acid distribution systems
used in conjunction with the Company’s equipment. Costs
incurred to eliminate certain sales and marketing activities
include costs to eliminate Elantec-specific web sites and to
terminate duplicated software contracts and leases for certain
sales offices. The restructuring plan was formalized in May 2002,
and is currently funded from working capital in accordance
with the plan. As a result of the merger, 106 Elantec employees
were notified that their employment would be terminated and
were apprised of the specifics of their severance benefits. As
of January 2, 2004 approximately 92% of the affected employ-
ees had been terminated. The remaining employees will be
terminated over the next three months. The affected sales
offices and fabrication facility have been closed. Of the $7.7 mil-
lion in restructuring costs within this plan, $0.6 million was
recorded in fiscal year 2003 as an adjustment to the severance
benefits paid to employees. This adjustment was considered
as a purchase price adjustment in determining goodwill.

Savings from this restructuring will be realized as each of
the specific actions are completed in the form of reduced
employee expenses, lower depreciation expense and lower
operating costs. Specifically, the Company estimates that
annual savings of cost of product sales to be approximately
$10.1 million, which primarily includes decreased payroll,
healthcare costs and depreciation on fixed assets. The
Company also estimates that annual savings of selling, general
and administrative costs to be approximately $5.1 million,
which includes decreased payroll, healthcare costs, sales office
lease expenses, advertising expenses and software license

expenses. Below is a summary of the restructuring costs and
the remaining accrual:

Balance Balance
December 28, January 3,

($ in millions) 2001 Additions Utilizations 2003

Employee termination costs $ — $3.6 $(0.9) $2.7
Milpitas plant closure costs — 2.4 (0.1) 2.3
Sales office closure costs — 1.1 (0.1) 1.0

Total restructuring costs $ — $7.1 $(1.1) $6.0

Balance Balance
January 3, January 2,

2003 Additions Utilizations 2004

Employee termination costs $2.7 $0.6 $(2.0) $1.3
Milpitas plant closure costs 2.3 — (0.7) 1.6
Sales office closure costs 1.0 — (0.5) 0.5

Total restructuring costs $6.0 $0.6 $(3.2) $3.4

Note K—Other Restructuring

This note serves to outline each of the Company’s restruc-
turing plans as authorized by the Board of Directors. Each
plan is discussed individually, and the relevant financial impli-
cations are summarized in the tables following each discussion.
In the tables, amounts identified as “additions” represent
accruals recorded via the income statement, while amounts
identified as “utilizations” represent cash expenditures reducing
such accruals.

March 2001
In March 2001, the Board of Directors approved and the
Company announced major restructuring activities to improve
ongoing operations and product gross margins. This restructur-
ing plan was predicated on the phased closure of the
Company’s Findlay, Ohio manufacturing operation and the exit
of the modem board assembly manufacturing process in
Scottsdale, Arizona. In connection with the restructuring, the
Company recorded expenses of approximately $22.7 million
($13.9 million after tax) within continuing operations during fiscal
year 2001. Costs of the restructuring plan include employee
termination costs, costs incurred to decontaminate and defacil-
itate the fabrication facility and contract cancellation costs.
Employee termination costs include involuntary severance pay-
ments and outplacement training. Decontamination and defa-
cilitation costs include costs for removing and disposing of air
handlers, exhausts, structural steel, process cooling loops, gas
piping and acid distribution systems used in conjunction with
equipment. Other decommission costs include costs to secure
equipment remaining on site after closure. Contract cancella-
tion costs include fees charged to Intersil under non-cancelable
purchase orders from three vendors. In connection with the
announced restructuring, approximately 522 employees were
notified that their employment would be terminated and were
apprised of the specifics of their severance benefits. The
affected positions included manufacturing, selling, general and
administrative employees. 521 of the employees were located
in the United States and 1 was located in Europe. The sale of
the Findlay, Ohio manufacturing operation was completed late
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in September 2002, and, accordingly, all of the affected employ-
ees had been terminated as of January 2, 2004. No remaining
activities exist with respect to the execution of this plan.

Savings from the restructuring will be realized when each
of the specific actions are completed. Specifically, the
Company estimated that annual savings of cost of product
sales would be approximately $25.0 million to $30.0 million
annually. These savings are largely in the form of decreased
payroll, healthcare costs, and factory overhead, which is com-
prised of depreciation, utilities and property taxes. Although
determination of actual savings is difficult to determine
because of changes in product mix, technological specifica-
tions and product demand, the Company believes that actual
savings have been approximately $21.0 million annually. A
summary of the restructuring charges and the remaining
accrual is depicted in the following table:

Balance Balance
December 28, January 3,

($ in millions) 2001 Additions Utilizations 2003

Employee termination costs $13.6 $ — $ (9.4) $4.2
Facility decommission costs 4.1 — (3.8) 0.3
Contract cancellation costs 0.2 — (0.2) —

Total restructuring costs $17.9 $ — $(13.4) $4.5

Balance Balance
January 3, January 2,

2003 Utilizations 2004

Employee termination costs $4.2 $ (4.2) $ —
Facility decommission costs 0.3 (0.3) —

Total restructuring costs $4.5 $ (4.5) $ —

June 2002
After the merger with Elantec, the Company accrued for
restructuring activities relating to the consolidation of the
combined entity’s business operations. These costs were not
included in the purchase price determination and the alloca-
tion thereof as they relate to the Company’s activities that
were conducted prior to the merger. As a result of the restruc-
turing, the Company recorded a charge of $4.7 million ($2.8 mil-
lion after tax) in continuing operations during fiscal year 2002.
The restructuring plan includes employee termination costs
and the elimination of certain sales and marketing activities
existing prior to the merger. Employee termination costs
include involuntary severance payments and outplacement
training. Costs incurred to eliminate certain sales and market-
ing activities include lease cancellation costs and costs associ-
ated with the termination of sales representative agreements.
As a result of the merger with Elantec, 24 Intersil employees
were notified that their employment would be terminated and
were apprised of the specifics of their severance benefits.
Affected positions included primarily selling employees, of
whom 13 were located in the United States, 7 in Europe and 4
in Asia. As of January 2, 2004, all of the affected employees
had been terminated. No remaining activities exist with
respect to the execution of this plan.

Savings from the restructuring will be realized as each of
the specific actions are completed in the form of reduced

employee expenses, lower depreciation expense and lower
operating costs. Specifically, the Company estimates that
annual savings of selling, general and administrative costs to
be approximately $3.0 million, which includes decreased pay-
roll, healthcare costs, sales office lease expenses, and
decreased payments to sales representatives. The Company
believes there has not been significant variances between the
expected savings and actual savings. A summary of the
restructuring costs and the remaining accrual is depicted in
the following:

Balance Balance
December 28, January 3,

($ in millions) 2001 Additions Utilizations 2003

Employee termination costs $— $3.4 $(2.4) $1.0
Sales office closure costs — 1.3 (0.7) 0.6

Total restructuring costs $— $4.7 $(3.1) $1.6

Balance Balance
January 3, January 2,

2003 Utilizations 2004

Employee termination costs $1.0 $(1.0) $ —
Sales office closure costs 0.6 (0.6) —

Total restructuring costs $1.6 $(1.6) $ —

January 2003
In January 2003, the Company announced a cost reduction
initiative predicated on a 3% reduction in workforce. Due to
the adoption of SFAS 146, severance related costs are
expensed when incurred rather than when they are
announced as a part of a restructuring plan. However, the
severance agreements under this restructuring plan entitle
terminated employees to benefits upon notification of termina-
tion. Accordingly, the Company expensed $1.3 million ($0.8 mil-
lion net of tax) in continuing operations during fiscal year
2003. The restructuring plan includes employee termination
costs, which include involuntary severance payments and out-
placement training. In connection with the cost reduction
initiative, 22 employees were notified that their employment
would be terminated and were apprised of the specifics of
their severance benefits. The affected positions included
manufacturing, selling, general and administrative employ-
ees; all of such employees were located in the United States.
As of January 2, 2004, 100% of the affected employees had
been terminated. No remaining activities exist with respect to
the execution of this plan.

Savings from the restructuring will be realized as each of
the specific actions are completed in the form of reduced
employee expenses and lower operating costs. Specifically,
the Company estimates that annual savings of cost of product
sales are approximately $0.2 million. The Company also esti-
mates that annual savings of research and development
expenses are $0.1 million. Finally, the Company estimates that
annual savings of selling, general and administrative
expenses are $2.1 million. These savings are in the form of
decreased payroll and healthcare costs. The Company
believes there have not been significant variances between
the planned savings and actual savings. A summary of the
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restructuring charges and the remaining accrual is depicted in
the following table:

Balance Balance
January 3, January 2,

($ in millions) 2003 Additions Utilizations 2004

Employee termination costs $— $1.3 $(1.3) $—

Total restructuring costs $— $1.3 $(1.3) $—

August 2003
In August 2003, the Company announced a restructuring plan
that coincided with the sale of the Wireless Networking product
group. The restructuring plan includes the termination of
approximately 8% of the remaining workforce and the closure of
three sales office locations in the United States and Europe. In
accordance with Statements of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 146 (“SFAS 146”), “Accounting for Costs Associated with
Exit or Disposal Activities,” a company accrues costs related to
liabilities as they are incurred. The terms of the relevant sever-
ance benefits stipulate that an employee is entitled to payments
if that employee remains employed with the Company through
his or her termination date. Thus during fiscal year 2003, the
Company recorded charges of $4.1 million for the portion of
severance benefits and lease payments that it was obligated to
pay as of January 2, 2004. Employee termination costs include
involuntary severance payments and outplacement training
provided. In connection with the cost reduction initiative, 129
employees were notified that their employment would be termi-
nated and were apprised of the specifics of their severance
benefits. The affected positions included manufacturing,
research and development, and selling, general and administra-
tive employees; 119 of such employees were located in the
United States, 6 in Europe and 4 in Asia. As of January 2, 2004,
98% of the affected employees had been terminated. The
remaining employees will be terminated within the next 12
months at a cost of $0.1 million.

Savings from the restructuring will be realized as each of
the specific actions are completed in the form of reduced
employee expenses and lower operating costs. Specifically, the
Company estimates that annual savings of cost of product sales
are approximately $4.2 million. The Company also estimates
that annual savings of research and development expenses are
$1.1 million. Finally, the Company estimates that annual savings
of selling, general and administrative expenses are $2.6 million.
These savings are in the form of decreased payroll, healthcare
costs and lease expenses. Due to the recent date of this plan, it
is difficult to ascertain if there have been significant variances
between the expected savings and actual savings. The 
remaining restructuring accrual balance as of January 2, 2004
will be paid over the next six months. A summary of the
restructuring charges and the remaining accrual is depicted in
the following table:

Balance Balance
January 3, January 2,

($ in millions) 2003 Additions Utilizations 2004

Employee termination costs $— $4.0 $(2.9) $1.1
Sales office closure costs — 0.1 — 0.1

Total restructuring costs $— $4.1 $(2.9) $1.2

Note L—Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In connection with the closure of the Findlay, Ohio manufac-
turing operation, the Company recorded an impairment loss
of $7.6 million ($3.7 million after tax) on its property, plant and
equipment during fiscal year 2001. The impairment loss was
determined by comparing the carrying value of the assets to
an appraised value on the land, equipment and buildings, and
the expected future undiscounted net cash flows from the
equipment to be disposed in accordance with SFAS 121. The
Company recorded an additional impairment loss on these
assets in fiscal year 2002 as described below.

During fiscal year 2002, the Company recorded impairment
losses of $5.9 million ($3.6 million net of tax). Of this amount,
$3.6 million ($2.3 million net of tax) related to the property,
plant and equipment within the Findlay, Ohio manufacturing
facility. The write-down reduced the carrying value of the
assets to their fair value, which was based on the contractual
sales price of the assets in accordance with SFAS 144. Prior to
this impairment, the carrying value of the Findlay assets was
$5.2 million. As these assets were held and used until their
disposal, the Company continued depreciation over their
remaining useful lives. These assets were sold in September
2002, and the transaction did not result in a gain or loss. The
remaining $2.3 million ($1.3 million net of tax) impairment
during fiscal year 2002 is related to the adjustment of idle pro-
duction assets to their fair value based on estimated future
cash flows from the sale of these assets in accordance with
SFAS 144. As of January 2, 2004, all but one asset within this
asset group had been sold or scrapped. The Company did not
incur significant gains or losses related to the disposal of
these assets. Prior to this impairment this idle equipment had
a carrying value of $4.9 million.

The Company recorded an impairment of long-lived
assets of $12.6 million ($7.5 million net of tax) during fiscal year
2003. This primarily consisted of a $10.4 million ($6.4 million
net of tax) write-down of certain definite-lived intangible
assets, which were tested for impairment following the sale
of the Wireless Networking product group. Specifically, the
Company impaired a portion of its customer base and devel-
oped technology balances that resulted from the purchase of
the net assets of Harris Corporation’s semiconductor business.
The impairments were measured as the excess of the assets’
carrying value over the assets’ fair value as determined by the
present value of cash flows arising from the assets in accord-
ance with SFAS 144. Prior to this impairment these assets had
a combined carrying value of $33.2 million. Also included in the
aforementioned $12.6 million impairment was a $2.0 million
impairment ($1.2 million after tax) related to the write-off of 
a prepaid technology royalty for which the Company deter-
mined it would not incorporate into its future products. The
write-off reduced the value of the prepaid to zero as the
Company does not expect to realize any future benefit from
the asset. This treatment is in accordance with SFAS 144.

All impairments described above relate to continuing
operations and are contained within the caption “Impair-
ment of long-lived assets” on the face of the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
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Note M—Leases and Commitments 

Total rental expense from continuing operations amounted to
$9.1 million for fiscal year 2001, $7.1 million for fiscal year 2002
and $7.8 million for fiscal year 2003. Future minimum rental
commitments under non-cancelable operating leases primarily
related to land and office buildings amounted to approximately
$11.3 million at January 2, 2004. These commitments for the years
following 2003 (which exclude the estimated rental expense
for annually renewable contracts) are: 2004—$4.4 million,
2005—$3.1 million, 2006—$1.4 million, 2007—$1.0 million,
2008—$0.7 million and $0.7 million thereafter. The Company
expects the following sublease inflows in the years following
2003: 2004—$0.2 million and 2005—$0.1 million.

The following table sets forth the Company’s future
contractual obligations and off-balance sheet arrangements as
of January 2, 2004:

($ in millions) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter

Future minimum 
lease commitments $ 4.4 $3.1 $1.4 $1.0 $0.7 $0.7

Open capital equipment 
purchase commitments 3.2 — — — — —

Open raw material 
purchase commitments 12.0 — — — — —

Standby letters of credit 4.0 — — — — —

$23.6 $3.1 $1.4 $1.0 $0.7 $0.7

Future minimum lease commitments consist primarily of
leases for buildings and other real property. Open raw material
purchase commitments are comprised of purchase orders for
foundry wafers, silicon wafers as well other miscellaneous
expense items. The Company utilizes standby letters of credit
primarily for security for workers compensation, environmental
items, and electricity as well as for security for our vendors.

Intersil has a contract in place with ChipPAC in which they
provide test and package services subject to certain limits
and exceptions. All of the Company’s obligations under this
agreement are paid in cash and are the result of arm’s-length
transactions. This commitment (see Note Y for additional
detail) expires June 30, 2005.

Note N—Common Stock and Dividends

Intersil is authorized to issue 600.0 million shares of Intersil com-
mon stock, par value $0.01 per share, divided into two classes
consisting of 300.0 million shares of Intersil Class A Common
Stock and 300.0 million shares of Intersil Class B Common
Stock. Holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to one
vote for each share held and holders of Class B Common Stock
have no voting rights. A holder of either class of Intersil common
stock may convert any or all shares into an equal number of
shares of the other class of Intersil common stock.

On August 13, 1999, in connection with the issuance of a
13.5% Subordinated Holding PIK Note, Intersil issued to Citicorp
Mezzanine Partners, L.P., warrants to purchase 3,703,707 shares
of its Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $.0015 per

share, subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments. These
warrants became exercisable after August 13, 2000, and expire
on August 15, 2009. As Intersil prepaid in full the 13.5%
Subordinated Holding PIK Note within 24 months after issuance,
the number of shares subject to such warrants were reduced
to 2,222,224 shares. The warrants were valued at $0.3 million
and were treated as additional interest related to the 13.5%
Subordinated Holding PIK Note. As of January 2, 2004, no
shares of Intersil Class A Common Stock remained to be
issued pursuant to these warrants.

At June 30, 2000, Intersil had 200,000 outstanding 
warrants (issued with the 13.25% Senior Subordinated Notes) to
purchase 3,703,707 shares of Class A Common Stock of Intersil.
Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase 18.5185 shares at
a price of $.0015 per share. The warrants became exercisable
on August 13, 2000 and expire on August 15, 2009. As of
January 2, 2004, 9,275 shares of Class A Common Stock
remained to be issued pursuant to these warrants.

During fiscal year 2001, Sterling Holding Company, LLC
(“Sterling”), converted 20,924,521 shares of its Intersil Class B
Common Stock into an equivalent number of shares of Intersil
Class A Common Stock. During fiscal year 2002, Sterling con-
verted 8,495,756 shares of its holdings in Intersil Class B
common stock into an equivalent number of shares of Intersil
Class A common stock. Sterling converted 7,786,719 shares of
its holdings in Intersil Class B common stock into an equivalent
number of shares of Intersil Class A common stock during
fiscal year 2003. At January 2, 2004 the Company had no
outstanding Intersil Class B common stock.

On May 14, 2002, the Company issued 29,587,331 shares
of its Class A common stock in exchange for all outstanding
shares of Elantec common stock (see Note I).

The tables below summarizes the activity within each class
of common stock for all periods presented:

Class A
Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
2001 2003 2004

Beginning Balance 68,099,740 90,565,018 129,140,657
Shares issued under 

stock plans 535,816 1,767,552 2,726,718
Purchase of Elantec — 29,587,331 —
Conversion from 

B shares 20,924,521 8,495,756 7,786,719
Shares retired — (1,275,000) (1,372,795)
Exercised warrants 1,004,941 — 1,050,118

Ending Balance 90,565,018 129,140,657 139,331,417

Class B
Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
2001 2003 2004

Beginning Balance 37,206,996 16,282,475 7,786,719
Conversion to A shares (20,924,521) (8,495,756) (7,786,719)

Ending Balance 16,282,475 7,786,719 —
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Dividends
In September 2003, the Board of Directors declared the
Company’s first common stock dividend, of $0.03 per share,
which was paid on November 24, 2003 to stockholders of record
as of November 3, 2003.

Note O—Treasury Shares

In March 2001, the Board of Directors authorized a stock repur-
chase program under which the Company may repurchase up
to $50 million of its outstanding common stock. In September
2003, the Board of Directors authorized another stock repur-
chase program under which the Company may repurchase up
to $100 million of its outstanding common stock during the
following 12 months. The number of shares to be repurchased
and the timing of purchases will be based on a variety of fac-
tors, including general market conditions and the market price
and trading volume of its shares. One of Intersil’s purposes for
purchasing its shares on the open market is to partially offset
shareholder dilution from employee stock option exercises.
Additionally, due to market conditions, management believes
the repurchase of shares represents an effective use of the
Company’s cash balance. Intersil Corporation has no Board-
approved future plan for the reissuance of these shares. As of
January 3, 2003 and January 2, 2004, respectively, 225,000 and
1,157,100 shares at an approximate cost of $3.6 million and
$30.0 million had been repurchased and were held as treasury
stock. The following table summarizes the treasury share activ-
ity during fiscal year 2002 and 2003:

Cost of Number of
(at cost and in millions, except share amounts) Shares Shares

Treasury shares as of December 28, 2001 $ 11.9 498,000
Treasury shares repurchased 18.6 1,002,500
Treasury shares retired (26.9) (1,275,500)

Treasury shares as of January 3, 2003 3.6 225,000
Treasury shares repurchased 51.6 2,304,895
Treasury shares retired (25.2) (1,372,795)

Treasury shares as of January 2, 2004 $30.0 1,157,100

Note P—Deferred Stock Units and Unearned
Compensation

The Board of Directors has established minimum common
stock ownership requirements for the CEO and other key
executives. The ownership requirement established for the
Chief Executive Officer is four times his base salary. For other
key executives, the ownership requirement is two times their
base salary. The CEO and other key executives have a five-year
period over which to achieve the targeted ownership require-
ment. As a result, the Company issued 132,600 deferred stock
units to 11 executives and 6 Board members during fiscal year
2003. The issuance of the deferred stock units is in conjunction
with a decrease in the issuance of options. The deferred stock
units entitle the executives to receive one share of Intersil
Class A common stock for each deferred stock unit issued,
provided the executives are employed at Intersil on the third

anniversary of the grant date. The deferred stock units do
share in all dividends. The weighted average fair value of all
deferred stock units issued during fiscal year 2003 was $16.17.

According to the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 44,
“Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compen-
sation,” the issuance of these deferred stock units requires
compensation expense to be measured and recognized
evenly over the three-year vesting period. Accordingly, the
Company recorded $2.4 million in unearned compensation
within the equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheet
during fiscal year 2003. The unearned compensation was cal-
culated by multiplying the average share price on the day of
issuance by the number of deferred stock units issued. The
Company reversed $0.2 million of the unearned compensation
balance during fiscal year 2003 when 15,000 deferred stock
units were forfeited due to the departure of two executives.

Unearned compensation is recorded within the share-
holders’ equity portion of the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
As of January 2, 2004, the Company’s unearned compensation
had resulted from the issuance of the aforementioned
deferred stock units as well the issuance of unvested stock
options as part of the merger with Elantec (see Note I).
Amortization of unearned compensation from continuing
operations was $14.5 million and $12.0 million for fiscal year
2002 and fiscal year 2003, respectively. There was no amortiza-
tion of unearned compensation from continuing operations
during fiscal year 2001. Expected amortization of unearned
compensation for each of the next five years is the following:
2004—$5.2 million, 2005—$2.9 million, 2006—$0.9 million,
2007—$0.0 million and 2008—$0.0 million.

Note Q—Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes from continuing 
operations is summarized below:

($ in thousands) Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
2001 2003 2004

Current taxes:
Federal $ 85,887 $(9,989) $16,900
State 8,565 (1,266) 2,903
Foreign 1,428 5,890 1,562

95,880 (5,365) 21,365
Deferred taxes:

Federal (28,824) 8,968 (449)
State (2,626) 339 (17)

(31,450) 9,307 (466)

Income tax expense $ 64,430 $ 3,942 $20,899

The benefit related to tax deductions from the exercise of
non-qualified stock options is recorded as an increase to addi-
tional paid-in capital when realized. As a result of the exercise
of non-qualified stock options, the Company realized tax ben-
efits of approximately $4.0 million, $0.9 million and $4.8 million
during fiscal year 2001, fiscal year 2002 and fiscal year 2003,
respectively.
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The provision (benefit) for income taxes is included in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations as follows:

Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
($ in thousands) 2001 2003 2004

Income tax expense from 
continuing operations $64,430 $ 3,942 $20,899

Income tax expense (benefit) 
from discontinued operations (9,577) 14,974 32,603

Total income tax expense $54,853 $18,916 $53,502

The income tax expense/(benefit) from discontinued oper-
ations is attributable to the sale of our Wireless Networking
product group in fiscal 2003.

The components of deferred income tax assets (liabilities)
are as follows:

January 3, 2003 January 2, 2004

($ in thousands) Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

Receivables $ 515 $ — $ 182 $ —
Inventory 4,001 — 15,105 —
Fixed assets — (211) — 4,228
Intangibles — (7,033) — (589)
Accrued expenses 22,812 753 10,805 8,955
NOL carryforward — 11,296 — —
All other—net 2,074 1,787 13,751 (2,059)
Tax credits — 10,082 — —
Available-for-sale 

securities — — — (981)

Continuing 
operations 29,402 16,674 39,843 9,554

Discontinued 
operations 4,864 (1,027) — —

$34,266 $15,647 $39,843 $ 9,554

A reconciliation of the statutory United States income tax
rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate follows:

Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
2001 2003 2004

Statutory U.S. income tax rate 35.0% (35.0)% 35.0%
State taxes 3.7 (4.8) 3.6
International income 1.2 (2.4) (9.5)
Benefit related to export 

sales for tax purposes (0.1) (2.4) (2.4)
Research credits (0.8) (15.0) (5.2)
In-process research and development — 85.5 —
Cost method investment impairment — — 5.8
Subpart F—Interest & Stock Gains — — 2.7
Tax-exempt interest — (0.6) (1.7)
Other items 1.2 (4.9) (2.0)

Effective income tax rate 40.2% 20.4% 26.3%

United States income taxes have not been provided on
undistributed earnings of international subsidiaries because of
Intersil’s intention to reinvest these earnings.

Pretax income (loss) of international subsidiaries was
$4.4 million, $28.0 million and $25.5 million during fiscal year
2001, fiscal year 2002 and fiscal year 2003, respectively.

Income taxes paid were $61.7 million, $12.4 million and
$2.1 million during fiscal year 2001, fiscal year 2002 and fiscal
year 2003, respectively.

The Company recorded a valuation allowance in 2001 of
approximately $2.2 million related to certain foreign net
operating loss carryforwards. In 2002, this valuation allowance
was reduced to zero due to the Company’s actual and
expected utilization of the remaining net operating loss carry-
forwards. As of January 2, 2004, the Company expects to have
fully utilized these foreign net operating loss carryforwards.

Note R—Geographic Information and Concentration of Risk

Intersil operates exclusively in the semiconductor industry.
Substantially all revenues result from the sale of semiconductor
products. All intercompany revenues and balances have been
eliminated.

A summary of the operations by geographic area is
summarized below:

Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
($ in thousands) 2001 2003 2004

United States Operations
Net sales $152,533 $130,367 $126,411
Tangible long-lived assets 124,393 141,905 150,616

International Operations
Net sales 246,009 289,192 381,273
Tangible long-lived assets $ 1,060 $ 2,032 $ 2,794

Export sales included in U.S. operations were $89.2 million,
$139.6 million and $146.1 million during fiscal years 2001, 2002
and 2003, respectively.

Intersil markets its products for sale to customers, including
distributors, primarily in the United States, China, Taiwan,
Japan, Germany, Singapore, Korea, Thailand, Malaysia and the
United Kingdom. Credit is extended based on an evaluation of
the customer’s financial condition and collateral is generally not
required. Of the Company’s sales from continuing operations
for fiscal year 2003, 24% were made to customers within China,
13% to customers within Taiwan and 12% to customers within
Japan. Of the Company’s sales from continuing operations
for fiscal year 2003, 12% were made to one distributor that
supports a wide range of customers in Taiwan and China.

Note S—Discontinued Operations

Upon evaluation and review of the Wireless Networking port-
folio, the Company concluded that the Wireless Networking
product group was not core to its long-term strategy and thus
sold the product group on August 28, 2003 with the appropriate
authority of the Board of Directors. The Company has decided
to focus on the analog product groups where it provides
power management, optical storage, flat panel display and
other analog solutions. The Wireless Networking product
group produced a portfolio of semiconductor solutions for the
wireless local area network market (“WLAN”).
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Proceeds from the transaction included $250.0 million in
cash and $114.4 million in GlobespanVirata common stock.
These shares represented approximately 12% of the voting
shares prior to the sale and approximately 10% of the voting
shares following the sale. The Company sold all of the
acquired GlobespanVirata shares in the same quarter in which
it received them. Additionally, the Company kept the product
group’s accounts receivable and accounts payable balances
that existed at the time of sale. The Company recorded a gain
of $61.4 million ($28.0 million net of tax). The gain could be
affected by a contingent working capital adjustment. The gain
was calculated as the proceeds less $259.6 million of the 
product group’s net assets, $32.0 million of transaction costs,
and $11.4 million in charges for employee stock option accel-
eration. Net assets were comprised of inventory, fixed assets,
prepaid expenses, intangibles, goodwill and certain liabilities
primarily consisting of accrued compensation, sales reserves
and payables related to royalty contracts. Transaction costs
include legal fees, investment banking fees, audit fees, and
legal costs associated with patent infringement suits existing at
the time of the sale, for which Intersil has retained the liability.
As of January 2, 2004, the Company had recorded approximately
$21.1 million of accruals to cover unpaid transaction costs.
In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS 144”), “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the
Company has not included the results of operations of its
Wireless Networking product group in the results from contin-
uing operations. The results of operations for this product
group have been reflected in discontinued operations through
the date of the sale. The income/(loss) from discontinued
operations for fiscal year 2001, fiscal year 2002 and fiscal year
2003 consists of the following:

Year Ended

December 28, January 3, January 2,
($ in thousands) 2001 2003 2004

Revenues $120,984 $230,159 $120,821
Costs of products sales 75,580 114,474 78,264
Research and development 42,022 53,100 39,801
Selling, general and administrative 22,102 22,130 16,516
Amortization of intangible assets 34,364 2,554 1,254
Amortization of unearned 

compensation 2,801 771 285
Impairment of long-lived assets — 250 15,928
Restructuring 9,756 580 201

Operating income (loss) (65,641) 36,300 (31,428)
Gain from sale of product group — — 61,411
Loss on investments — 3,000 10,000

Income (loss) before taxes (65,641) 33,300 19,983
Income taxes (benefit) (9,577) 14,974 32,603

Net income (loss) from 
discontinued operations $ (56,064) $ 18,326 $ (12,620)

As of January 2, 2004, there were no assets remaining
related to this product group. The following table details 
the assets held for sale related to the Wireless Networking
product group as of January 3, 2003:

($ in thousands) January 3, 2003

Inventories, net $ 24,966
Other current assets 843
Deferred income taxes 4,865

Current assets 30,674
Property, plant and equipment, net 17,438
Intangible assets 192,726
Investments 10,767
Other long-term assets 336

Total assets 251,941
Deferred revenue 278
Retirement plan accruals 1,041
Accrued compensation 3,810
Sales reserves 3,366
Other accrued items 6,184
Deferred income taxes 1,027

Total liabilities 15,706

Net assets held for sale $236,235

Note T—Employee Benefit Plans

Equity Compensation Plan
On November 5, 1999, Intersil adopted the 1999 Equity
Compensation Plan (“Plan”), which became effective on
August 13, 1999 for salaried officers and key employees. The
Plan originally authorized the grant of options for up to 7.5 mil-
lion shares of Intersil Class A common stock and can include
(i) options intended to constitute incentive stock options
under the Internal Revenue Code, (ii) non-qualified stock
options, (iii) restricted stock, (iv) stock appreciation rights,
and (v) phantom share awards. The number of shares author-
ized for the Plan was increased to 17.5 million shares by the
shareholders at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held
May 15, 2001.

The exercise price of each option granted under the
Plan shall be determined by a committee of the Board of
Directors. The maximum term of any option shall be 10 years
from the date of grant for incentive stock options, and 10
years and one day from the date of grant for non-qualified
stock options. Options granted under the Plan are exercisable
at the determination of the Board of Directors currently vest-
ing ratably over approximately four to five years. Employees
receiving options under the Plan may not receive in any one-
year period options to purchase more than 666,667 shares of
common stock.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plan is presented in the table below:

Year Ended

December 28, 2001 January 3, 2003 January 2, 2004

Shares Weighted Average Shares Weighted Average Shares Weighted Average
(in thousands) Exercise Price (in thousands) Exercise Price (in thousands) Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of period 4,136 $25.72 5,623 $26.50 19,344 $21.56
Granted 2,345 24.83 15,519 19.14 3,572 22.17
Exercised (316) 10.52 (905) 6.36 (2,501) 8.79
Canceled (542) 25.26 (893) 23.07 (2,526) 28.86

Outstanding at end of period 5,623 $26.50 19,344 $21.56 17,889 $22.43

Exercisable at end of period 822 $28.29 7,596 $18.56 9,611 $22.12

Weighted average fair value of options granted $20.59 $21.50 $14.83

Information with respect to stock options outstanding and stock options exercisable is presented in the table below:

Number Weighted Average Number
Outstanding Remaining Weighted Average Exercisable Weighted Average
(in thousands) Contractual Life Exercise Price (in thousands) Exercise Price

January 3, 2003
$ 1.10–$ 1.67 1,137 5.47 $ 1.31 1,117 $ 1.31
$ 1.71–$ 2.41 1,683 6.40 $ 2.16 1,196 $ 2.13
$ 2.86–$ 4.30 40 6.06 $ 3.38 27 $ 3.33
$ 4.41–$ 6.39 278 6.45 $ 5.27 218 $ 5.27
$ 6.89–$10.37 933 7.01 $ 9.08 720 $ 9.13
$12.86–$18.38 3,544 9.40 $ 15.15 472 $ 15.77
$19.50–$26.12 4,595 8.48 $ 22.67 1,306 $ 22.85
$26.29–$35.88 4,645 8.82 $ 29.42 1,206 $ 28.85
$37.07–$55.13 2,457 7.61 $ 42.83 1,321 $ 42.52
$57.31–$79.01 32 7.64 $ 62.59 15 $ 63.22

January 2, 2004
$ 1.10–$ 1.67 773 4.49 $ 1.30 773 $ 1.30
$ 1.71–$ 2.41 759 5.44 $ 2.17 630 $ 2.16
$ 2.86–$ 4.30 17 5.09 $ 3.20 17 $ 3.20
$ 4.41–$ 6.39 169 5.64 $ 5.25 169 $ 5.25
$ 6.89–$10.37 819 6.01 $ 9.12 805 $ 9.12
$12.86–$18.38 3,562 8.66 $15.10 1,098 $15.32
$18.63–$25.00 4,369 7.86 $22.83 2,121 $22.73
$25.13–$29.90 3,977 8.51 $26.79 1,541 $27.07
$30.21–$54.00 3,429 7.20 $37.71 2,445 $38.66
$54.19–$79.01 14 6.60 $59.17 12 $59.10
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan
In February 2000, Intersil adopted the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) whereby eligible employees can pur-
chase shares of Intersil’s common stock. Intersil has reserved
1,333,334 shares of common stock for issuance under the ESPP.
The Company had 131,334 shares available for issuance under
the plan as of January 2, 2004. The ESPP permits employees to
purchase common stock through payroll deductions, which
may not exceed 10% of an employee’s compensation, at a
price not less than 85% of the market value of the stock on
specified dates. In no event, may any participant purchase
more than $25,000 worth of shares in any calendar year and an
employee may purchase no more than 16,667 shares on any
purchase date. Unless sooner terminated by the Board, the
ESPP shall terminate upon the earliest of (1) February 28, 2010,
(2) the date on which all shares available for issuance under the

ESPP shall have been sold pursuant to purchase rights exer-
cised under the ESPP, or (3) the date on which all purchase
rights are exercised in connection with a Corporate Transaction
(as defined in the ESPP). As of January 3, 2003 and January 2,
2004, approximately 783,000 and 1,202,000 shares had been
issued under the ESPP, respectively.

Note U—Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46
(“FIN 46”) “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” This
interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Con-
solidated Financial Statements,” addresses consolidation by
business enterprises of variable interest entities. Under current
practice, two enterprises generally have been included in
consolidated financial statements because one enterprise



controls the other through voting interests. This interpretation
defines the concept of “variable interests” and requires existing
unconsolidated variable interest entities to be consolidated by
their primary beneficiaries if the entities do not effectively dis-
perse the risks among the parties involved. This interpretation
applied immediately to variable interest entities created after
January 31, 2003, and to variable interest entities in which an
enterprise obtains an interest after that date. It applied in the
first fiscal year or interim period beginning after June 15, 2003,
to variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds a vari-
able interest that it acquired before February 1, 2003. If it 
is reasonably possible that an enterprise will consolidate or
disclose information about a variable interest entity when this
interpretation becomes effective, the enterprise shall disclose
information about those entities in all financial statements
issued after January 31, 2003. The interpretation may be applied
prospectively with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date
on which it is first applied or by restating previously issued
financial statements for one or more years with a cumulative-
effect adjustment as of the beginning of the first year restated.
The Company has completed its assessment of this interpreta-
tion and determined that it is not party to any variable interest
entities as of January 2, 2004.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 145. Under previous
guidance, all gains and losses from extinguishment of debt
were required to be aggregated and, if material, classified as
an extraordinary item, net of related income tax effect. This
Statement eliminates SFAS 4 and thus the extraordinary treat-
ment related to the extinguishment of debt in most instances.
As a result, gains and losses from extinguishment of debt
should be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet
the criteria in APB Opinion 30. The provisions of this
Statement related to the rescission of Statement 4 shall be
applied in fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. Any gain
or loss on extinguishment of debt that was classified as an
extraordinary item in prior periods presented that does not
meet the criteria in APB Opinion 30 for classification as an
extraordinary item shall be reclassified. The Company has
adopted the provisions of this standard and has reclassified its
loss on the extinguishment of debt for fiscal year 2001 on the
face of the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 146 (“SFAS 146”), “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS 146
addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associ-
ated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues
Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for
Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit
an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).”
SFAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an
exit or disposal activity be recognized when a liability is
incurred rather than when an exit or disposal plan is approved.
The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 146 for any exit
or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 149 (“SFAS 149”), “Amendment 
of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities.” This Statement amends and clarifies financial
accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts
(collectively referred to as derivatives) and for hedging activities
under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133
(“SFAS 133”), “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” The statement was effective for contracts
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003. The adoption of
this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 150 (“SFAS 150”), “Accounting for
Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilities and Equity.” This Statement establishes standards
for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial
instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It
requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is
within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circum-
stances). This standard was effective at the beginning of the
first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, except for
mandatorily redeemable financial instruments of non-public
entities that are subject to the provisions of this Statement for
the first fiscal period beginning after December 15, 2003. The
adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on
the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Note V—Loss From Extinguishment of Debt

In March 2001, the Company tendered all of its $61.4 million in
outstanding debt. Accordingly, the Company recorded a
charge of $19.7 million ($12.2 million net of tax) related to
premiums paid on repurchase and the write-off of unamortized
deferred financing fees during fiscal year 2001.

Note W—Shareholder Rights Plan

On August 29, 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors
adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan (“Rights Plan”). Under
the Rights Plan, rights were distributed as a dividend at 
the rate of one right for each share of common stock of the
Company held by the shareholders of record as of the close
of business on September 17, 2003. Until the occurrence of
certain events, the rights are represented by and traded in
tandem with the common stock. Each right will separate and
entitle the shareholders to buy stock upon an occurrence of
certain takeover or stock accumulation events. Should any
person or group acquire beneficial ownership of 20% or
more of the Company’s common stock, each right not held
by the Acquiring Person becomes the right to purchase, 
at an exercise price of $115, that number of shares of the
Company’s common stock that at the time of the transaction,
have a market value of twice the exercise price. In addition,
if after a person or group becomes an Acquiring Person 
the Company merges, consolidates or engages in a similar
transaction in which it does not survive, each holder has a
“flip-over” right to buy discounted stock in the acquiring
company. Certain of our principal stockholders will not be and
cannot become an Acquiring Person and will not be counted
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as affiliates or associates of any other person in determining
whether such person is an Acquiring Person under the
Rights Plan.

Under certain circumstances, the rights are redeemable
by the Company at a price of $0.0001 per right. Further, if any
person or group becomes an Acquiring Person, the Board of
Directors has the option to exchange one share of common
stock for each right held by any Person other than the
Acquiring Person. The rights expire on August 29, 2006.

In connection with the adoption of a Stock Purchase
Rights Plan, the Board of Directors adopted a resolution creat-
ing a series of 25,000 shares of preferred stock designated as
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. As of January 2,
2004, none of the shares were issued or outstanding.

Note X—Guarantees

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation 
No. 45 (“FIN 45”), “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees
of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 elaborates on the existing
disclosure requirements for most guarantees, including loan
guarantees such as standby letters of credit. It also clarifies
that at the time a company issues a guarantee, the company
must recognize an initial liability for the fair value, or market
value, of the obligations it assumes under the guarantee 
and must disclose that information in its interim and annual
financial statements. The provisions related to recognizing a
liability at inception of the guarantee for the fair value of 
the guarantor’s obligations do not apply to product war-
ranties or to guarantees accounted for as derivatives. The
initial recognition and initial measurement provisions apply
on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after
December 31, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45 did not have a
material impact on the Company’s results of operations 
or financial condition and did not result in any additional liabil-
ities as of January 2, 2004 associated with guarantees covered
by this interpretation.

Warranty
Intersil provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at
the time revenue is recognized. While the Company engages
in extensive product quality programs and processes, including
actively monitoring and evaluating the quality of its suppliers,
the estimated warranty obligation is affected by ongoing
product failure rates and material usage costs incurred in cor-
recting a product failure. If actual product failure rates or
material usage costs differ from estimates, revisions to the
estimated warranty liability would be required. The Company
warrants that its products will be free from defects in material
workmanship and possess the electrical characteristics to
which the Company has committed. The warranty period is for
one year following shipment. The Company estimates its war-
ranty reserves based on historical warranty experience. It
tracks returns by type and specifically identifies those returns
that were based on product failures and similar occurrences.
The Company’s warranty reserve has not changed materially
from quarter to quarter.

Information regarding the changes in Intersil’s aggregate
product warranty liabilities was the following for fiscal years
2002 and 2003 ($ in thousands):

Balance, December 28, 2001 $ 1,187
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 1,186
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during the period (1,117)

Balance, January 3, 2003 1,256
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 1,292
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during the period $(1,301)

Balance, January 2, 2004 $1,247

Indemnifications
The Company sold its facility in Mountaintop, Pennsylvania, to
Fairchild Semiconductor (“Fairchild”) in 2001. The fluoride pre-
treatment plant for industrial wastewater, which was installed
by Harris Corporation (“Harris”) in 1995, failed to operate to
design specifications and occasionally made discharges to the
local sanitary authority that exceed pretreatment standards.
Harris indemnified the Company in connection with the fluoride
wastewater system, and the Company subsequently indemni-
fied Fairchild. This matter was resolved in 2003 whereby we,
Harris and Fairchild released each other from any future claims
related to the treatment plant.

The Harris facilities in Palm Bay, Florida, are listed on the
National Priorities List (“NPL”) for groundwater clean up under
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liabilities Act, or Superfund. Intersil’s adjacent facility is
included in the listing since it was owned by Harris at the time
of the listing. Remediation activities associated with the NPL
site have ceased. However, Harris is still obligated to conduct
groundwater monitoring on the Company’s property for an
unspecified period of time. Harris has indemnified Intersil
against any environmental liabilities associated with this con-
tamination. This indemnification does not expire, nor does it
have a maximum amount.

The Company’s former facility in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia,
which the Company sold to ChipPAC in June 2000, has known
groundwater contamination from past operations. The con-
tamination was discovered in May 2000, during the closure
activities associated with a former waste storage pad. This
contamination has been attributed to activities conducted
prior to Intersil’s acquisition of the facility from Harris. Harris is
conducting additional investigations and some remediation
may be required. Harris has indemnified Intersil against any
environmental liabilities associated with this contamination,
and Intersil likewise is indemnifying ChipPAC against those
liabilities. This indemnification does not expire, nor does it have
a maximum amount.

The Company generally provides customers with a limited
indemnification against intellectual property infringement
claims related to the company’s products. The Company
accrues for known indemnification issues if a loss is probable
and can be reasonably estimated, and accrues for estimated
incurred but unidentified issues based on historical activity.
The accrual and the related expense for known issues were not
significant during the periods presented.

forty-nine



In certain instances when we sell product groups, the
Company may retain certain liabilities for known exposures
and provide indemnification to the buyer with respect to
future claims arising from events occurring prior to the sale
date, including liabilities for taxes, legal matters, intellectual
property infringement, environmental exposures and other
obligations. The terms of the indemnifications vary in duration,
from one to two years for certain types of indemnities, to
terms for tax indemnifications that are generally aligned to the
applicable statute of limitations for the jurisdiction in which the
divestiture occurred, and terms for environmental indemnities
that typically do not expire. The maximum potential future
payments that the Company could be required to make under
these indemnifications are either contractually limited to a
specified amount or unlimited. The Company believes that the
maximum potential future payments that the Company could
be required to make under these indemnifications are not
determinable at this time, as any future payments would be
dependent on the type and extent of the related claims, and
all available defenses, which are not estimable.

Note Y—Related Party Transactions

As of January 2, 2004, Intersil held a $0.5 million receivable
balance within the non-current section of the balance sheet
resulting from a loan made to an employee who is neither the
CFO nor CEO. The loan was made by Elantec prior to the
merger as part of an employment offer. The loan is a recourse
loan, and the security is in the form of a second trust deed on
the employee’s real property. The loan earns interest in excess
of the Prime Rate. The loan is due on April 18, 2007. A similar
loan for the same amount was repaid during fiscal year 2003.

Sterling, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Citigroup,
Inc., and its affiliates formerly owned a significant number of
Intersil’s common shares. However, as of January 2, 2004, Sterling
held none. Citigroup Venture Capital Equity Partners, which is
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Citigroup, Inc., indirectly
owns an interest in Fairchild and ChipPAC. Sterling holds a seat
on the Company’s Board of Directors. Citigroup Venture Capital
Equity Partners owns a seat on Fairchild’s and ChipPAC’s Board
of Directors. The terms of the sale of the Discrete Power product
group to Fairchild were the result of arm’s-length negotiations
and are no less favorable than those that could be obtained
from non-affiliated parties. Intersil has a contract in place with
ChipPAC, in which they provide a specified percentage of the
Company’s test and package activities subject to certain excep-
tions. The terms of the contract were the result of arm’s-length
negotiations and are no less favorable than those that could be
obtained from non-affiliated parties.

The table below summarizes the key aspects of the
Company’s relationship with ChipPAC:

($ in thousands, except share amounts) 2001 2002 2003

Purchases during fiscal year $41,057 $43,686 $50,414
Payable at fiscal year end $ 3,580 $ 3,703 $ 4,260
Common shares held as 

available-for-sales at fiscal year end 1,548,816 1,548,816 998,816

Note Z—Litigation Matters

The Company is currently party to various claims and legal
proceedings, including those discussed below. If the Company
believes that a loss is likely to arise from these matters and the
amount of the loss can be easily estimated, the Company will
record the amount of the loss. As additional information
becomes available, the Company will reassess any potential
liability related to these matters and, if necessary, will revise
its estimates.

If the Company believes a loss is less than likely but more
than remote, it will disclose the nature of the matter and, if pos-
sible, disclose its estimate of the possible loss. Although the
Company considers the risk of loss from the legal proceedings
discussed below to be less than likely but more than remote, it
is unable to estimate the amount of possible losses resulting
from these proceedings based on currently available informa-
tion. The Company believes that the ultimate outcome of these
matters, individually and in the aggregate, will not have a mate-
rial adverse effect on its financial position or overall trends in
results of its operations. However, litigation is subject to inherent
uncertainties and unfavorable rulings could occur, including an
award of monetary damages or issuance of an injunction pro-
hibiting the Company from selling one or more products. It is
possible that an unfavorable ruling could have a material
adverse impact on the results of the Company’s operations
for the period in which the ruling occurs, or in future periods.
In relation to the above matters, the Company has accrued
$19.1 million in estimated legal costs to defend its positions.

On March 17, 2003, the Company announced the settle-
ment of the litigation arising from the alleged infringement with
Proxim Corporation (“Proxim”). The terms of the confidential
settlement require Intersil to make an upfront cash payment to
Proxim and provide a rebate on the future sale of certain wireless
products to Proxim. In accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,” the
Company recorded the amounts related to the settlement as
an expense in cost of product sales in fiscal year 2002. The set-
tlement liability is reflected in “litigation accruals” at January 3,
2003. The final installment of the settlement was paid to
Proxim on May 6, 2003. Intersil has since sold its Wireless
Networking product group to GlobespanVirata, and assigned
the rebate agreement and related liability to GlobespanVirata.

On October 17, 2002, Agere Systems, Inc. (“Agere”) filed
suit against Intersil in the District Court of Delaware alleging
that Intersil infringes on certain patents by making, using, sell-
ing, offering to sell, and/or importing products that infringe
these patents. Agere seeks a permanent injunction as well as
unspecified actual and treble damages including costs,
expenses, and attorneys’ fees. Intersil has filed counterclaims
against Agere, including alleging Agere’s infringement of two
telecommunication and eight semiconductor technology
patents. The parties are currently in the discovery phase of the
litigation. A trial has been scheduled for November 2004.

On July 22, 2003, Agere filed a second patent suit against
Intersil in the District Court of Delaware. Agere seeks a perma-
nent injunction as well as unspecified actual and treble damages
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including costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees. Intersil has
counter-sued Agere, for infringement of four semiconductor
technology patents. Intersil has also sued Lucent Technologies,
Agere’s customer and former parent corporation, for infringe-
ment of 12 semiconductor technology patents.

On October 30, 2002, Intersil Corporation, Intersil
Americas Inc., and Intersil Corporation’s subsidiary at that time,
Choice-Intersil Microsystems, Inc. (“Choice”), filed a Complaint
and associated motion for preliminary injunction against Agere
in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,
for misappropriation of trade secrets developed pursuant to a
Joint Development Agreement (“JDA”) between Choice and
Lucent. On September 9, 2003, The District Court issued an
order denying Intersil’s motion and Intersil has filed an inter-
locutory appeal of this order with the U.S. Court of Appeals for
the Third Circuit (the “Appeal”). Intersil has amended the
Complaint to add claims against Agere for copyright infringe-
ment. In August 2003, Intersil Corporation sold Choice to
GlobespanVirata Inc. (“GlobespanVirata”). Agere counter-
claimed against Intersil Corporation, Intersil Americas Inc.,
Choice, and GlobespanVirata (“Counterclaim Defendants”),
alleging trade secret misappropriation, unjust enrichment,
declaratory judgment regarding Agere’s alleged rights under the
JDA, breach of contract, tortious interference with contract, and
copyright infringement, involving alleged acts and omissions

before and after Intersil Corporation’s sale of Choice. Agere
seeks a preliminary and permanent injunction as well as
unspecified actual damages including costs, expenses, and
attorneys’ fees. In February 2004, the Court dismissed Intersil
Corporation and Intersil Americas Inc. as co-Plaintiffs, leaving
Choice as the Plaintiff. Intersil Corporation and Intersil
Americas Inc. remain as Counterclaim Defendants. The parties
have requested a jury trial, which is presently expected to take
place in the fourth quarter of 2004. Intersil disputes Agere’s
counterclaims and intends to vigorously defend the lawsuit.

On July 23, 2003, Symbol Technologies, Inc (“Symbol”),
an Intersil customer, filed suit against the Company and its
subsidiary, Choice-Intersil Microsystems, Inc., in the Supreme
Court of the State of New York, Suffolk County. Symbol
alleges that the Company and its subsidiary are required to
indemnify Symbol in an amount in excess of $1.5 million for
Symbol’s expenses, including attorneys fees, incurred in
defending certain patent infringement claims asserted
against Symbol by Proxim Incorporated, in two separate civil
actions pending in Federal District Court for the District of
Delaware. Symbol, contends that the alleged infringement
was caused by hardware and firmware components purchased
from Intersil and included in Symbol products. Intersil disputes
Symbol’s indemnification claims and intends to vigorously
defend the lawsuit.
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Note AA—Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly financial information for the periods indicated:

Quarters Ended

Mar. 29, June 28, Oct. 4, Jan. 3, April 4, July 4, October 3, January 2,
($ in millions, except per share data) 2002 2002 2002 2003 2003 2003 2003 2004

Net sales $88.1 $ 87.5 $118.3 $125.7 $115.6 $125.5 $130.5 $136.1
Gross margin 47.5 44.5 66.0 63.4 66.3 70.5 73.8 77.2
Net income (loss) $13.8 $(18.3) $ 3.6 $ (4.1) $ 13.7 $ (0.1) $ 9.1 $ 23.7

Income (loss) per share—basic $0.13 $(0.15) $ 0.03 $ (0.03) $ 0.10 $ (0.01) $ 0.07 $ 0.17

Income (loss) per share—diluted $0.13 $(0.15) $ 0.03 $ (0.03) $ 0.10 $ (0.01) $ 0.06 $ 0.17

a) On August 28, 2003, the Company sold the assets of its Wireless Networking product group to GlobespanVirata, Inc. The results of operations of the product were
excluded after the date of sale. Please refer to Note S for further discussion. This change resulted in certain reclassifications of prior quarterly information as the
results of this product group qualified as a discontinued operation.

b) The quarter ended October 4, 2002 contained 14 weeks. All other periods contain 13 weeks.
c) On May 14, 2002, the Company merged with Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. (Elantec). Accordingly, Elantec’s results of operations since the merger date are included

within the results above. Please refer to Note I for further discussion.
d) The Company experienced no extraordinary items during the time periods presented above. Therefore net income/(loss) is equal to income/(loss) before

extraordinary items for all periods presented.
e) During fiscal year 2002 and fiscal year 2003, the Company recorded various impairment charges. These charges reduce expenses in periods subsequent to their

recording thus affecting comparability of the financial data. Please refer to Note L for further discussion.
f ) During fiscal year 2002 and fiscal year 2003, the Company recorded various restructuring charges. These charges reduce expenses in periods subsequent to their

recording thus affecting comparability of the financial data. Please refer to Notes J and K for further discussion.
g) Effective March 30, 2002 the Company began to recognize revenue to North American distributors on a sell-through basis. As such, the Company now recognizes

sales to North American distributors upon shipment by the distributor to the end customer. Formerly, the Company recognized revenue from North American
distributor sales upon shipment to the distributors. The impact of this change resulted in a reduction in net income of $6.6 million during the quarter ended June 28,
2002, (the quarter of adoption). This change did not have a material impact on the results of operations subsequent to the adoption as the recognition of previously
deferred revenue offset the additional deferrals.

Note AB—Subsequent Events (Unaudited)

On January 28, 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.03 per share of common stock. Payment
of the dividend was made on February 27, 2004 to shareholders of record as of the close of business on February 17, 2004.



Board of Directors
Intersil Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Intersil Corporation as of January 2, 2004 and
January 3, 2003, and the related Consolidated Statements of
Operations, Comprehensive Income (Loss), Shareholders’ Equity,
and Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended January 2, 2004 and
January 3, 2003, and December 28, 2001. These financial state-
ments are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated finan-
cial position of Intersil Corporation at January 2, 2004 and
January 3, 2003 and the consolidated results of its operations
and its cash flows for the fiscal years ended January 2, 2004,
January 3, 2003 and December 28, 2001, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

As discussed in Notes A and B to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, on December 29, 2001, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” and Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”

Jacksonville, Florida
January 28, 2004
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Alden Chauvin
Vice President, Worldwide Sales

Meghan Dalton
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Rick Furtney
Vice President, General Manager, 
High Performance Analog Product Group

Dan Heneghan
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INTERSIL FELLOWS
Sandy Fairgrieve
Barry Harvey
Dr. Jack Linn
Dr. Larry Pearce
Joe Pierret
Nick Van Vonno

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Please contact the Investor Relations
department for any investment-related
questions or to receive additional copies 
of this report, our annual report on 
Form 10-K, or other financial information
free of charge. Call us at 1-888-468-3774
or write to us at:
Investor Relations 
Intersil Corporation 
2401 Palm Bay Road, NE 
Mailstop: 53-225 
Palm Bay, FL 32905

Or send an e-mail to: 
investor@intersil.com

INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Ernst & Young LLP

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Our transfer agent can assist you 
in affecting a change in address 
or replacing lost stock certificates, 
as well as a variety of other services:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Co. 
59 Maiden Lane 
Plaza Level 
New York, NY 10038 
Phone: 1-800-937-5449 
Email: info@amstock.com

DESIGN CENTERS

Irvine, CA
Milpitas, CA
Palm Bay, FL
North Branch, NJ
Research Triangle Park, NC
Dallas, TX
Seattle, WA
Harlow, United Kingdom
More information is available on the
Internet at www.intersil.com

Intersil trades on the NASDAQ under 
the ticker symbol ISIL.
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